
 
 

AGENDA  
 
 
Meeting: Health Select Committee 

Place: Committee Rooms A-C, Monkton Park Offices, Chippenham  

 SN15 1ER 

Date: Thursday 30 May 2013 

Time: 10.30 am  

 

 
Please direct any enquiries on this Agenda to Sam Bath, of Democratic Services, 
County Hall, Bythesea Road, Trowbridge, direct line (01225) 718211 or email 
sam.bath@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 
Press enquiries to Communications on direct lines (01225) 713114/713115. 
 
This Agenda and all the documents referred to within it are available on the Council’s 
website at www.wiltshire.gov.uk  
 

 
Membership: 

Cllr Chris Caswill 
Cllr Christine Crisp 
Cllr Mary Douglas 
Cllr Peter Hutton 
Cllr Bob Jones MBE 
Cllr Helena McKeown 

Cllr John Noeken 
Cllr Jeff Osborn 
Cllr Sheila Parker 
Cllr Nina Phillips 
Cllr Pip Ridout 
Cllr Ricky Rogers 

 

 
Substitutes: 

Cllr Pat Aves 
Cllr Mary Champion 
Cllr Dennis Drewett 
Cllr Sue Evans 
Cllr Russell Hawker 
Cllr Julian Johnson 

Cllr Gordon King 
Cllr John Knight 
Cllr Ian McLennan 
Cllr Helen Osborn 
Cllr Mark Packard 

 

 
 



 PART I 

 Items to be considered whilst the meeting is open to the public 
 
 

1   Membership  

2   Apologies  

3   Election of Chairman  

 To elect a Chairman for the ensuing year. 

4   Election of Vice Chairman  

 To elect a Vice Chairman for the ensuing year. 

5   Committee Membership - stakeholders  

 The previous Committee included the following non-voting stakeholder 
representation: 
 

• Advisor on social inclusion for older people (Brian Warwick) 

• Wiltshire and Swindon Users’ Network (Linda Griffiths or Dorothy 
Roberts) 

• Wiltshire Involvement Network (Phil Matthews) – NOTE: This 
organisation ceased to exist as at 1 April 2013. 

 
Following the changes to the health and social care system, the Committee may 
wish to consider stakeholder membership of the Committee.  Members are also 
able to invite appropriate representatives to consider specific activities or 
projects as they arise. 

6   Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 1 - 14) 

 To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 14 March 2013. 

7   Declarations of Interest  

 To receive any declarations of pecuniary and non-pecuniary interests or 
dispensations granted by the Standards Committee. 

8   Chairman's announcements  

9   Public Participation  

 The Council welcomes contributions from members of the public. 
 
Statements 
 
If you would like to make a statement at this meeting on any item on this 
agenda, please register to do so at least 10 minutes prior to the meeting. Up to 



3 speakers are permitted to speak for up to 3 minutes each on any agenda item.  
Please contact the officer named above for any further clarification. 
 
Questions  
 
To receive any questions from members of the public or members of the 
Council received in accordance with the constitution. Those wishing to ask 
questions are required to give notice of any such questions in writing to the 
officer named above no later than 5pm on Wednesday 22 May 2013.  Please 
contact the officer named on the first page of this agenda for further advice.  
Questions may be asked without notice if the Chairman decides that the matter 
is urgent. 
 
Details of any questions received will be circulated to Committee members prior 
to the meeting and made available at the meeting and on the Council’s website. 

10   Mid Staffordshire NHS Foundation Trust Public Enquiry (Francis Report)  

 The final report of the Mid Staffordshire NHS Foundation Trust Public Enquiry, 
chaired by Robert Francis QC, was published on 6 February 2013.  The report 
considered the evidence of over 250 witnesses, over a million pages of 
documentary evidence and put forward 290 recommendations. 
 
Whilst the report attributed accountability for the failures at Stafford Hospital to 
the Trust Board, it also pointed to the systematic failure of a wide range of 
national and local bodies to respond to the concerns raised about patient care.  
The report says, 
 

‘…that at every level there was a failure to communicate known 
concerns adequately to others and to take sufficient action to 
protect patients’ safety and wellbeing from the risks arising from 
those concerns.’  

 
Chapter 6 of the report relates to patient and public involvement and scrutiny. 
The inquiry took evidence from councillors and senior officers with responsibility 
for health scrutiny in Staffordshire.  The report goes into some detail in its 
observations and a number of the recommendations made relate directly to 
overview and scrutiny.  
 
Members are asked to note that it is intended to bring a report to the next 
meeting of the Committee, which will look specifically at the implications for 
overview and scrutiny arising from the Francis Report.  The report will set out 
the key messages arising from the Francis Report and consider the relevant 
recommendations to enable the Committee to identify any areas for 
development for health overview and scrutiny in Wiltshire. 

11   Royal United Hospital - Inspection Update (Pages 15 - 44) 

 Members may have seen reports in the local media and be aware that the Care 
Quality Commission (CQC) made an unannounced inspection at the Royal 
United Hospital (RUH) in February 2013. 



 
The CQC looked at two different parts of the hospital, the older people's wards 
and the day surgery unit.  It found that the RUH was not meeting the required 
standard in the following four categories: 

• Respecting and involving people who use services 

• Care and welfare of people who use services 

• Cooperating with other providers 

• Records. 
 
The CQC has provided the following comment. 
 

‘Following inspection at the RUH Bath in early February the Trust 
sent an action plan to CQC outlining how the trust intends to 
achieve compliance with the areas of concern identified in our 
inspection report .  CQC have accepted the action plan and will 
return to the hospital to check compliance again when the dates in 
the action plan have passed.  The inspection will be unannounced 
so we are unable to confirm when the inspection will occur. 
 
‘The inspection in February was a responsive inspection following 
local information raised with CQC raising concerns about the 
manner in which patients had been discharged during a period of 
'black alert' in January.  Upon arrival at the hospital the scope of 
the inspection was extended to review the care of patients 
accommodated in 'escalation' areas at the hospital.  Shortly after 
the inspection we were informed that the Trust had stopped using 
the day surgery unit (DSU) as an escalation area.  Due to 
continued high levels of urgent admissions the trust was unable to 
maintain that position.  We have been in touch with the trust since 
the inspection and been informed of the immediate actions taken 
by the trust to ensure care quality and safety had been improved 
for patients accommodated in the DSU. ’ 

 
Both the CQC inspection report and the RUH action plan in response to the 
report are attached.  Members are asked to note these reports.  The Committee 
will be kept informed of developments and a further update provided following 
the CQC follow-up inspection. 

12   SWAN Advocacy  

 Members will recall that Cllr Jane Scott, Leader of the Council, referred to 
SWAN Advocacy at full Council as the organisation that provides advocacy 
services on behalf of the Council.  SWAN Advocacy is in the process of 
preparing a funding application for the second stage of a Big Lottery Fund 
application.  This is to fund a specialist dementia advocacy service throughout 
the county to complement the work undertaken as part of their contract with 
Wiltshire Council; a successful application will result in over £350,000 over 4 
years. 
 
As part of the application, SWAN Advocacy have undertaken consultations with 



a range of stakeholders.  They would now like to seek the views of the 
Committee; they would also like to quote the meeting as part of their evidence in 
the application.  Irene Kohler, Chair of SWAN Advocacy, will deliver a 
presentation and answer members’ questions.  

13   Work Programme  

 The Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee is due to meet on 23 May, 
after the publication of this agenda.  The Management Committee will consider 
the recommendations of the previous Council in respect of legacy items for the 
work programme of this Committee.  Should they be accepted, the legacy items 
for the Health Select Committee will comprise the following topics: 
 

Topic Notes 

Clinical Commissioning 
Group (CCG)  
via task group 

Review performance of CCG and local 
groups against priorities in Strategic 
Plan 2013/2014, including effectiveness 
of public engagement and mechanisms 
to deal with conflicts of interest during 
commissioning. 
 

Transfer to Care  
via task group 
 

Review proposed protocol, policy 
documents and project results, and 
consider any resulting financial 
challenges. 
 

Avon and Wiltshire Mental 
Health Partnership (AWP) 
via task group 
 

Consider review of services to Wiltshire 
residents 

Continence Services 
via task group 
 

Review of services. 

Air Quality (joint with 
Environment Select 
Committee) 
via task group 
 

Review the implementation of the Air 
Quality strategic objectives and actions 
plan, and the effectiveness of Council 
Services working together to ensure 
that respective service contributions are 
embedded within service delivery plans.  
To consider ‘cause and effect’. 
 

NHS 111 service 
via rapid scrutiny 

Investigate impact of implementation of 
111 service 
(please see note below*) 

Joint Strategic 
Assessment 
Adults Safeguarding 
Annual Report 
Continuing Health Care 
Cardiovascular Services 

The Committee to receive 
reports/updates 

 



*NHS 111 service (rapid scrutiny) 
At the last meeting of the Committee, concerns were raised about the 
performance of the NHS 111 service and particularly its impact on the 
ambulance service.  As a result it was agreed that a rapid scrutiny exercise 
should be conducted into the NHS 111 service but, due to the imminence of the 
local elections, that it should be added to the legacy items for the Committee.  It 
was subsequently agreed that there was sufficient time to conduct the exercise 
before the elections.  It was then established that the BANES and Wiltshire 
Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCG) had decided to delay the start of the 24/7 
cover for the service and were due to meet to consider a number of options in 
relation to the provision of the service by Harmoni.  It was considered 
inappropriate to undertake a rapid scrutiny at that time and the Committee wrote 
to Harmoni urging it to work with the CCG to ensure that it delivers a high level 
of service for Wiltshire residents and that patient safety is paramount. 
 
The Committee is asked to consider the legacy items and any additional topics, 
including those arising from the overview and scrutiny induction event on 16 
May, for inclusion in the forward work programme. 

14   Urgent Items  

 To consider any other items of business that the Chairman agrees to consider 
as a matter of urgency. 

15   Date of Next Meeting  

 The next meeting of the Health Select Committee will be on 02 July 2013. 
 

 PART II 

 Items during whose consideration it is recommended that the public 
should be excluded because of the liklihood that exempt information 

would be disclosed 
 

NONE 



�
�
�

�
�
�
�

���������������	

������
�

�
�
����
�������	���������������������	

������
������������	��
���
�
������������
���������
���
����������
�����	���������
�����
��	���������������
������������
���� ����!�
�
�"#$#%&'�
�
�����������	
����������
��
������
������������
�����������������������������
�
������
���
�������������
��������������
�
���������������
�
��������������� ����!�������
"�������"����
����#$
��������
�������������������	����%��
���������� �&��%���
�����������
����&�
"��	�����#�������
� �

�
''� �()*)+,#$�

�
(������
���
�
� �
�
��
&� )���������  ��
�	�������������
����(��
����&����������
%�&���*� � ����� 
��
�� ����
�� ���������
&� )��� ����� 	������ ��&� �����  �&�� %���
�
���������
&�)��������(��
�*�
�

'+� 
,%-&#$�).�&/#��"#0,)-$�
##&,%+�
�
,�
� "����
�� )��� ��
� �

����� �
�&� ��� -.�  ������� /0-1� �
�
� ����
&� ��&�
������
&����������
����
���&*�
�

'2� �#1*2"2&,)%$�).��%&#"#$&�
�
,�
�
��
�
����&
����������*�
�

'.� �/2,"32%4$��%%)-%1#3#%&$�
�
,�
� ��������� �����
&�"
��
��� ��&� �����
��� )��� ��
��� �������� ��
�� ��
� �����
�
���� ��&� ������������� ����� "����
���� ���� ���� ���
�&���� ���� ����� �������

�
�

����� ��� ����������)�#$
*� ��
��
����
&�"��
�3�������� )���� ��
�3��
� ��&�
%
���
��
����
� ��&� �����
&� ��
�4�
���#
��
���(�������
��
����
� �4#(���
)�����
������������������ 
��
������
*�
�
,�
������������&����
�&
&����
�
������ ��
�4�
���#
��
�������������������
&�
���
$�5�������
��&�����������
��������������)�����
���������)���
��
��67����
������
���&������
�����&���
�)�������������

������)�#$
*�
�
,�
� ��������� �������
&� ��
� )��������� ��������
���8� ��������
� 4���
��� �
��
��������� �)� �
����������� $���� ,���
��� �
�� ���
)� 59
�����
� �)� ��
� (���� ��&�
#�������
�"
������
����������
������ �(#�����
�
���������
�����
)�59
�����
��)�
������������������*���
����)���
&������4#(����&��

����:���
&������
�������
#
��
���(�������
��
����
�3���&������,�������#(�3,�*�

Agenda Item 6

Page 1



�
�
�
�

�

�
�
�

�
$�
��;������
���
�&������������
������
��.���&���
��-/�����������
������
��<*�
�

'<� �-5*,1��2"&,1,(2&,)%�
�

��:�
��������
�
��
�
��
&*�
�

';� �2$6��")-(�2%7�
2(,7��1"-&,%8��")-(�
#()"&$�
�
,�
��������

��
�
��
&��
������)����,����4��������&�%���&����������4�����*�
�
�����2$6��")-(�
#()"&���
�
,�
��������

����

&������
���
�������)� ��
�,����4�������� �����

��������-+�

��
��
��/0-/���������&
����
�
))
����
�&
�
����
����)���
���4*�
�
,�
�,����4������
�����������
�
��
&����������
�
������
�*��$���������
&������
��
� ��4� �������
&� ���

� ������ ������8� 
����� 5���� #�������
� �
5#��� #
���
#�������
�� =������ !
��
��� ��&� �
��>
�� �##=!��� ��&� ������� ���
����� ��
�
������������
�*���
�

#$)*0#7'�
�
�)�#%7)"$#�&/#�"#1)33#%72&,)%$�).�&/#������2$6��")-(�2$�.)**)9$'�
�
�!� �/#� �#2*&/� �#*#1&� �)33,&&##�� 9,&/,%� &/#� %#9*8�#*#1&#7� �,*&$/,"#�
�)-%1,*�� $/)-*7� #$&25*,$/� 2� ���� �2$6� �")-(� &)� -%7#"&26#� &/#�
"#1)33#%72&,)%$�5#*)9!��
�
�!� �/#��2$6��")-(�$/)-*7�7#0,$#�,&$�)9%��#"3$�).�
#.#"#%1#!��
�
�!� �/#��2$6��")-(�$/)-*7� ,%0#$&,+2&#�9/2&�(")+"#$$�&/#�����326#$�
2+2,%$&�&/#�(",)",&,#$�,7#%&,.,#7�,%�,&$��&"2&#+,1��*2%�����:��!��
�
�!� �/#� (#".)"32%1#� ).� #21/� ).� &/#� &/"##� *)12*� +")-($� ).� &/#� ����
$/)-*7�5#�3)%,&)"#7��9,&/�2�"#0,#9�"#;-#$&#7�.")3�#21/�2"#2�9,&/,%�&/#,"�
.,"$&�8#2"!�
�
 !� �/#��2$6��")-(�#<23,%#$�9/2&�3#1/2%,$3$�&/#�����/2$�,%�(*21#�
&)� 7#2*� 9,&/� 1)%.*,1&$� ).� ,%&#"#$&� &/2&� 1)-*7� 2",$#� 7-",%+� &/#�
1)33,$$,)%,%+:(")1-"#3#%&�(")1#$$!����
�
=!� �/#��2$6��")-(�1)%$,7#"$�9/2&�2""2%+#3#%&$� &/#����� ,$�326,%+�
&)�#%+2+#�9,&/�(2&,#%&$�2%7�&/#�(-5*,1��2%7�9/2&�3#1/2%,$3$�2"#�,%�(*21#�
&)�3#2$-"#�2%7�3)%,&)"�&/#�#..#1&,0#%#$$�).�&/#$#!�
�

Page 2



�
�
�
�

�

�
�
�

>!� �/#� �#2*&/� �#*#1&� �)33,&&##� 1)%$,7#"$� ,7#%&,.8,%+� 2%� ,%7,0,7-2*�
$#"0,1#��1)33,$$,)%#7�58� &/#������9,&/�2�0,#9�&)�#$&25*,$/,%+�2� .-"&/#"�
�2$6��")-(�&)�,%0#$&,+2&#�&/#�?(2&,#%&�(2&/928@�9,&/,%�&/2&�$#"0,1#!�
�
�
�-5*,1��#2*&/��"2%$,&,)%��2$6��")-(�
#()"&��
�
,�
��������

����

&������
���
�������)� ��
�,����4�������� �����

��������-+�

��
��
��/0-/� ��������&
�� ��
� �����)
���)���������
����� )������
�
��� ��� ��
�
�������*�
�
,�
�,����4������
�����������
�
��
&����������
�
��������*���
����)���
&������
��
�,����4��������������)�
&� ����� ��
� �����)
�����������
�����������������&��
������
�������
�,����4����������&��
�&�����&
&*���
�

#$)*0#7'�
�)� #%7)"$#� &/#� "#1)33#%72&,)%$� ).� &/#� �-5*,1� �#2*&/� �"2%$,&,)%� �2$6�
�")-(�2$�.)**)9$'�
�
�/#��#2*&/��#*#1&��)33,&&##�7,$52%7$�&/#��-5*,1��#2*&/��"2%$,&,)%��2$6�
�")-(!��
�
�/2&�2%�-(72&#�"#()"&�)%� &/#� &"2%$,&,)%� ,$�("#$#%&#7�&)� &/#��#2*&/��#*#1&�
�)33,&&##�2&�,&$�3##&,%+�)%�����)0#35#"�����*��
�
�
�"2%$.#"$�&)��2"#��2$6��")-(�
#()"&�
�
,�
��������

����

&������
���
�������)� ��
�,����4�������� �����

��������-+�

��
��
��/0-/���������&
����
�����
�������������������
��������
��
����������
�����������&��������������
����
�)���������)���
��������
*��
�
,�
�,����4������
�����������
�
��
&���������
��
������
�*�
�
$���������
&������
�4
����������
����
�&������'������
��
�������&
��
)
�
��
�
��� ?��
� �����
������ 4����@A� ����� �����&� �
� ���
� ����
����� �
)
��
&� ��� ��� ?��
�
��

�����4����@*��
�
�3#%73#%&�
�**"� �)*3#"� (")()$#7� 2%� 23#%73#%&� &)� 2*&#"� &/#� 9)"7,%+� ).�
"#1)33#%72&,)%� �� .")3� A!!!7)1-3#%&$� (")7-1#7� 58� &/#� (2"&%#"$/,(�
+")-(B� �	� A7)1-3#%&$� (")7-1#7� 58� &/#� �&##",%+� �")-(B!� �/,$� 92$�
$#1)%7#7�58��**"��,%2��/,**,($�2%7�-%2%,3)-$*8�2+"##7�58�&/#�1)33,&&##!�
�

#$)*0#7'�
�)� #%7)"$#� &/#� "#1)33#%72&,)%$� ).� &/#� �"2%$.#"$� &)� �2"#� �2$6��")-(��
9,&/�23#%73#%&$��2$�.)**)9$'�
�

Page 3



�
�
�
�

�

�
�
�

�!� �/#� �#2*&/� �#*#1&� �)33,&&##�� 9,&/,%� &/#� %#9*8�#*#1&#7� �,*&$/,"#�
�)-%1,*��$/)-*7�#$&25*,$/�2��"2%$.#"�&)��2"#��2$6��")-(�&)�-%7#"&26#�&/#�
"#1)33#%72&,)%$�5#*)9!��
�
�!� �/#��2$6��")-(�$/)-*7�7#0,$#�,&$�)9%��#"3$�).�
#.#"#%1#!��
�
�!� �/#��2$6��")-(�3##&$�2&�&/#�#2"*,#$&�)(()"&-%,&8!�
�
�!� �/#� �2$6� �")-(� $/)-*7� "#0,#9� &/#� (")()$#7� (")&)1)*� 2%7� ()*,18�
7)1-3#%&$�(")7-1#7�58�&/#��&##",%+��")-(!���
�
 !� �/#� �2$6� �")-(� $/)-*7� "#0,#9� &/#� "#$-*&$� ).� &/#� (")C#1&� 5#,%+�
-%7#"&26#%� 2&� &/#� 
��!� � �%� 277,&,)%�� ,&� $/)-*7� 1)%$,7#"� &/#� ,7#%&,.,#7�
"#2$)%$�.)"�7#*28$��9,&/�2�0,#9�&)�2$6,%+�&/#��#2*&/��#*#1&��)33,&&##�&)�
#$&25*,$/�2�.-"&/#"��2$6��")-(�&)�,%0#$&,+2&#�$(#1,.,1�12-$#$�).�7#*28!���
�
=!� �/#��2$6��")-(�1)%$,7#"$�&/#�.,%2%1,2*�2$(#1&$�,%�&/,$�2"#2�2%7�&/#�
1/2**#%+#$�&/#8�,3()$#�)%�7#1,$,)%�326,%+!�
�
�
�)%&,%#%1#��#"0,1#$'�
2(,7��1"-&,%8�
#()"&��
�
,�
��
�����������
�
��
&�������������
��������
&���
�%���&����������59
����
*���
�
	����� #������� 
9��
��
&� ���� ����
��� ����� ��
� �����
�� ��� ��
� ������
��
�
�
����
� ��&��

�� ����
�
��
&��������� ���� ������������������ ���
��*� ��
�����
�

�� ��������
��������&����
���������
������
�����
�&�&������
��
�
� ����� ��
��
�
�
� ����
�
&� ��*� �
� ��&� ���
&� ����� ��
� ����&� ��������� 
9
����
� ����&� ���
�
�
����
&������)���
���
��������������
������
�*�
�
���������
��
�&���
&�"��#������@����
��*��$���������
&��������
��
����
���������
&��
�������&
����
����������)���
������������
���4��
������
��
�&���&�����&������
����
�������

�� ���
��������������))��
����
�
� �������������� ����
���
�� ��� ��
�

��*��
�
,�
��������������
&������"��#������@������
���������&�������
�����
&�����������
"�����������
�����)��������&
��)����������
������������
����
�������
������)�����&�
���
�:������*�
�
$���������
&� �����"
&
:������&��������
��
��&
��
� ��� ��
�%���&���������*� � $��
����:�
��
&���
��
��"
&
:������&��
&���
������������������������*��$�����������
:�
��
&���
��
��"
&
:���������&�
��������������������������������&��
��������
�
�
����
���
��)��������������������
*���
�
,�
��������

��������
&�
&� ���������������� ��
�������
��)��
����
�&
���
���
����&�))�����������
�
��
�
������&�����������
��������
����
���
��@�
9�
��
��
�*�$��
���

&��������
�����
����
����
��������&
:���
���&���������&
���
�������
��
�
��

Page 4



�
�
�
�

�

�
�
�

�)����
��
:���
&��������������

&��������
�
��������
��&
��
��)���&
�)��&�������
�������
�*�
�

#$)*0#7'�
�)� #%7)"$#� &/#� "#1)33#%72&,)%$� ).� &/#� 
2(,7� �1"-&,%8� �<#"1,$#� D�
�)%&,%#%1#��2$�.)**)9$'�
�
�!� �/#� �#2*&/� �#*#1&� �)33,&&##�� 9,&/,%� &/#� %#9*8�#*#1&#7� �,*&$/,"#�
�)-%1,*�� $/)-*7� #$&25*,$/� 2� �2$6� �")-(� &)� 1)%$,7#"� &/#� �)%&,%#%1#�
�#"0,1#�2%7�&)�-%7#"&26#�&/#�"#1)33#%72&,)%$�5#*)9!��
�
�!� �/#��2$6��")-(� 1)%$,7#"� &/#� 2$$#$$3#%&:"#�2$$#$$3#%&� (")1#$$��
,%�(2"&,1-*2"�&/#�%2&-"#�).�,&��&/#�1",&#",2�,%0)*0#7�2%7�&,3#$12*#$�2")-%7�,&!��
�
�!� �/#� �2$6� �")-(� 9,**� ,%0#$&,+2&#� &/#� *)+,$&,1$� ).� &/#� $#"0,1#�� 9,&/�
"#.#"#%1#� &)� 
#7#;-,(� 2%7� &/#� )(&,)%$� )..#"#7�� ,%� "#*2&,)%� &)� &/#�
"#;-,"#3#%&� .)"� +"#2&#"� .*#<,5,*,&8� 2%7� 1*,#%&� 1/),1#�� 2%7� 1)%$,7#"$� &/#�
3)%,&)",%+�).�(#".)"32%1#�,$$-#$!���
�
�!� �/#� �2$6� �")-(� *))6� 2&� (2&,#%&� )-&1)3#$� 2%7� "#;-,"#3#%&$��
,%1*-7,%+� 202,*25,*,&8� ).� 2((")(",2&#� 1)%&,%#%1#� (")7-1&$�� ."#;-#%18� ).�
$-((*8��5-..#"�$&)16$�2%7�.*#<,5,*,&8!��
�
 !� �/#� �2$6� �")-(� "#0,#9� &/#� �)-%1,*@$� ")*#�� "#$()%$,5,*,&,#$� 2%7�
2-&/)",&8�,%�1)%&,%#%1#�12"#�-%7#"�,&$��#2*&/�2%7��#**5#,%+�"#3,&!�
�
=!� �/#��2$6��")-(�#<23,%#�&/#�&#"3$�2%7�1)%7,&,)%$�).�&/#��,$25,*,&8�
�,0,%+��**)92%1#�2%7�,&$�2((*,12&,)%$!�
�
�
�),%&� �,"� E-2*,&8� �2$6� �")-(� 
#()"&� FC),%&� 9,&/� �%0,")%3#%&� �#*#1&�
�)33,&&##G!��
�
,�
�(���B�������,����4�������&���������������
��
&������
��������������
��)�
��
�5�������
����
�
����������

��5���*�����
�
��������&��

�����

&������
�
C�D���"����
�
����������

� ��� �����

����� ��� 2��
��
��
�� ����� ��� �����&�
�
���
� �� E����� ,����4���������� ��
��
����� �
�
��� �������

� ��� 
����
� �����
�����?����
���&�
))
��@��)�����:��������
�
������&
�
&*���
�
�����(�����������������������)���
�,����4����������������
�&���
������
�
�����
�
�
������)���
�E�����(���B�������,����4����*�
�
"����
�%�
�� ��������
����
������ ���)���
&� ����� ��
�������� �����&� ���� :�������
���
��

�� ����
��
&*� $����������
&� ���������:������� ����������
�����
��
*� �,�
�
�����������&
��������������
�����&���
���������
����
������&&�
��������
����������
:�����������
���������������
*��
�

#$)*0#7'�

Page 5



�
�
�
�

�

�
�
�

�)�#%7)"$#� &/#� "#1)33#%72&,)%$�).� &/#� C),%&��,"�E-2*,&8��2$6��")-(�2$�
.)**)9$'�
�
�!� �1"-&,%8� ).� &/#� �,"� E-2*,&8� �&"2&#+8� "#32,%$� ,%� &/#� �)"92"7��)"6�
�*2%�.)"�&/#�%#9��)-%1,*@$�	0#"0,#9�2%7��1"-&,%8�.-%1&,)%��$-5C#1&�&)�2%8�
1)33#%&�.")3�&/#�,%$(#1&)"!�
�
�!� 	0#"$,+/&� ).� &/#� 3)%,&)",%+� "#+,3#� 2%7� &/#� #;-,(3#%&� 5#�
-%7#"&26#%�&)�#%$-"#�,&�,$�.,&�.)"�(-"()$#�
�
�!� �/#��2$6��")-(�5#*,#0#$�&/2&��9/,*$&��,*&$/,"#��)-%1,*�,$�%)&�*#+2**8�
)5*,+#7� &)� ,3(")0#� 2,"� ;-2*,&8�� #0#%� 9/#%� ,&� #<1##7$� &/#� �)0#"%3#%&�
)(&,3-3� ,%� 2�(2"&,1-*2"� *)12&,)%�� 2%7� &/#"#�2"#�%)�$2%1&,)%$�202,*25*#� ,.�
9#�7)�%)&��,&�,$�,%1-35#%&�-()%�-$�2$�2�"#$()%$,5*#��-&/)",&8�&)�2&&#3(&�
&)�"#7-1#�&/#�#<1##72%1#$�&)�5#*)9�"#1)33#%7#7�*#0#*$!�
�
�!� �/2&� �,"� E-2*,&8� �**,2%1#$� "#0,#9� 2**� &/#� �)-%1,*�� $1/))*� 2%7�
5-$,%#$$�&"20#*�(*2%$�,%�&/#,"�2"#2!�
�

+0� 	*7#"��#)(*#4$��11)33)72&,)%��#0#*)(3#%&��&"2&#+8�
�
$�� �������/0--��#�������
��������@�������
��������
&���-0��
���&
�
����
���
�����
��������&
����
���&�������
���
������������&
���
���
@���������&������
��������&
&*��!��
�� ��
����
��������E
���"����
��������&
&������&��
������
�
�����
����)���
������
��*��
�
$�� ���� ����
&� ����� ����
� ��
� �&������� �)� ��
� �����
���� �����)������ �����
��� ����
�

����&
�������&����
�
�������&
�
����
�������������
�������������������
��
��*��#���������
������&
����
�����/1�&
�
����
�����������-+�����������
��
��� ��� ������
� ��&� ��&
����
� ��&
�� �
���
@�� �������&�����*� $�� �&&������
���
� &
�
����
���� �
�
� ����� �
���� �����
��
&� ����� )�
9���
� �
������ -02�
���

�
���*� �
�
����
���� �
�
� ���������� �������� ���&�� ��&� �
�
� ��� ���
� �����
)������������E
������*�
�
,�
� ���E
��
&� ���
����
�� �)� ���
� &
�
����
���� ��&� �

�� �������� )�����&�
������� ���
��� ���
� ���
�� ����
�� ��� ���
� ��� )�������� ����� ���� �����������
���������
&*�
�
,�
��������

�&������
&� ��
�����
���)� ������ ������
�
��
���������&
&������
�
����� �)� ��
� &
�
����
���� ��&� ��� ���� ���

&� ����� &
�
����
���� &
����� ��&�
�����
�
��� ����&� �
� �������� ��� ��
� ����
��� �)� ��
� C�&
�� �
���
��
(������&�������
�
����
��������
��*� $���������

&� ����� ��
������
�������&�
�
��������������
��
9���

�����)��������&
������������
��������

*��
�
,�
� ��������� �)� ���
� &
�
����
���� ���� &������
&� ��&� ����
���� �
�
�

9��
��
&���������
����������
������&��
�����������
���&
���
���
��
����������
&*���
!��
�� ��
��
9�����
&� ����� ��
������
���������������
���>
� )������������������
����� ���
� ��&
�� �
���
�����
&� ��� �������
� ��� ���
� ��� ������ ����������� ��&� �����

Page 6



�
�
�
�

�

�
�
�

�����������
������������)����������
���
�������&
&���
��
�������
*����
������
���)���
&� ����� ��
����E
��������
��� �
�����
&�&
����
� ��
������
����)� )��&����
��
���������
�������
*�
�

#$)*0#7'�
�
�)�%)&#'��
�!� �/#� ,3(*#3#%&2&,)%�(")+"#$$�).� &/#�	*7#"��#)(*#��11)33)72&,)%�
�#0#*)(3#%&��&"2&#+8!�
�
�!� �/#� .-%7,%+� 2((*,12&,)%�327#� &)� &/#� �#(2"&3#%&� ).� �#2*&/@$� �2"#�
2%7��-(()"&��(#1,2*,$#7��)-$,%+��-%7�&)�2$$,$&�&/#�7#*,0#"8�).�#<&"2�12"#�
/)-$,%+!�
�
�!� �/#� 7#0#*)(3#%&� 2%7� ,3(*#3#%&2&,)%� (")()$2*$� 2$$)1,2&#7� 9,&/�
�,*&$/,"#@$��<&"2��2"#��)-$,%+�
)7#*!���
�

+-� �),%&��&"2&#+,1��$$#$$3#%&�F���G�
�
(����&��
������
� �(�������
�
��
&����(��

���������*���
�
$�� ���� ���)���
&� ����� �� �������� &����
��� ���� �
���� ���&��
&� )��� ������
������������
�����������&
���)�����������������������
�*�
�
$�� ���� :�
��
&� ���� ��
�  �(� �
)�
��
&� ��
� �����
���� �
:���
�
���� �)� ���������
�
�����
�� ��� ��
� �������� )��������� ��
� �������
�
��� ��� ��
� �
��
����� �)�
�
)
��
� �����'000F� �����������&��
� �
��������� ���#�������
*� � $���������)���
&�
������

��������&��

���
�&��������������������������&
���)����
��
:���
�
�����)�
���������������*��$���������
&������#�������
���&��

�������
&������
����������)���
��
��
����
����&�������
�
�����������
�)�������������
�����
�������
�������*�
�
,�
��������

�:�
�����
&���
���
��)���
�&����
����)� �������&������
��

�����
��
� ������*� � $�� ���� ���)���
&� ����� ��
�  �(� ����&� �
� ������
&� ��� �� �����
����
&
���������������������������������&��
���
�
&���&����������
&������
�������*�
�
��������������������������
&�
&��������
�
����������
)��
�������)�����&����
����
��� ��
�  �(� ���� �
��
�
&� ����� ���
� ���
������ �����&� �
� ���&� ��� ����� ����������
�����*� � $�� ���� ���
&� ����� �����
�� ��� ���
���
��� ������� �������&���� �
�
)����
����&�
9��
����
� ����������
��������
��)� ��
����������
����
���
������&������
��
�������������&��

&����)��������
����������������
�*�
�
"����
� %�
� ����
&� ����� 
9�
����
� �
������ ��� ����&� ���
���� ��� ��
� ������� ��&�
�

��������
&���&������ ��
�������������&��������
� ��� �����
� ��
� ����
*� $������
����
&� ����� ��
� ����
���)� �
������� �������&����
�����
�
����
�
&� ���������
���)�
���
����
�����������
� �(*�
�
	�����#������� ���
&� ����� ��
� ?����
�� �����9@� ������� ��
�  �(� �������
&� �����
����
���������
���
&������&
���
���
��������
�
���������
�������)���&
���
���
��

Page 7



�
�
�
�

�

�
�
�

�
���
*���
�����&����
�����

�����
��
��
�����������?�����
���
���@�����
�����
�
:��������)���)
�����
���
���
*�
�
���������������
&���
�����
������&
����
����
��������
��������

@����
������
��
� �(��
�
���&
������������
������
���

��������-;�"�����/0-1*�
�

#$)*0#7'�
�
�/#��)33,&&##�%)&#7�&/#�(")7-1&,)%�2%7�(-5*,12&,)%�).� &/#�������������
"#()"&� 2%7� ,&$� $-(()"&,%+� 7)1-3#%&$� 2%7� #%7)"$#7� ,&$� -$#� ,%�
1)33,$$,)%,%+�2%7�$&"2&#+8!�
�
�)� "#0,#9� &/#� ���� 2%%-2**8� 2$� (2"&� ).� &/#� �)33,&&##@$� )%+),%+�
3)%,&)",%+�2""2%+#3#%&$!�
�
�

+/� �0)%�H��,*&$/,"#�
#%&2*��#2*&/��2"&%#"$/,(�F���G����/2"&#"��)-$#�
�
�
���
����������(����D�#�������
�"
������
����������
������ �(#���� �����&
&�
��� ��&��
� ��� ��
� �������

� ��� ��
� �
�������� ������
� �)� �����
�� ����
� ���
,������&�
*�
�
"�� �������� ����
&� ������ ��� �� )�������� )��� �
������ ����� �&����
&� ����
�� �)�
&
�
�����������
������
���&��
�
������

�����
&���������������&��������*�,�
�
�
��&� �

�� &�))������
�� �
��������� �&
:���
��� �����
&� ���))� ��� �����&
� ��
� �
�
�� �)�
���
����������&��
�
9�
��
&���&���
�)�����������������)���
�� ���������&�����
��)�
�
����*��(�����
������)������)���
�
�)������������������

&��������
�&�����)����
��
�&�����������������
������
�����
����
��
���)����������&���
&*�(�������
�����
����
��
��
&���������
������
����
������

���
�����
&�������
���
���
�������&���A�

•� ���������	�
����
�����
���

•� ������������������������������������

•� 	������������������������ ���
��!����"�

�
$���������
&���������
��
���
���
�
��������&
����
�&������
������)���������
��
����
����&���
�
)��
��
�
�������)������������
����
���������
�
9��
��
&������
�
 �(���&������������
�������
����&����
���*�3���������&���������������������

&�
����� ���
��� ��� ���&� :������� ���
� ��� ��
� �
����� ����&� �
� ��
)
����
� ��� �
���
)��������
����
������������&��������
�������
�
�����
�
����������������������
����
�������
*�
�
$���������)���
&�������&&��������)��&������&��

�������
&���&�����
&�������
�
���
�� ��&� ���������� ���������� ��� ��
� �
����� ��������
� ����
��
&� &
���&*�
"��������������
&� ����� ��
� �
��������������
��)������
������
�����������)���
��&
�� �
��
�� ����� ��
� �
����
� ������� ��
� �
����� ������ ���� �������� ��� ������
�
:���
�
����)�����&
���
���
*�
�
,�
���������������
&�"����������)��� ��
���&��
*�� $��������)�������
��������
�
�������

� ��&� ���� �
��&� �)� (#�@�� ������ )���� ��
�� &��
����*� � ,�
� ���������

Page 8



�
�
�
�

�

�
�
�


9��
��
&���
������������������
��������(#����&����
&��������
������&�������
���� )����
� ������ ��� ��
� �������

� )��� 
����� �����&
������*� � "�� ��������
���)���
&� ����� (#�� ����&� �
� �������� ����
��� ����� ��
� �������

� ��&�
����
���&
��*���
�
,�
� ��������� ����
&� ����� ���� ������� �

������ �
�
� �
���� �
�&� ��� (#�� ���
#�������
���������
�����
���������
�������������
)�
�����
��������
������E
����
���
������� ��&� ����
�*� � ,�
�
� ����&� �
� ��� -<� (����� ��� ��
� ,���� ������ �
��>
��
�
��

��/7'�����&�27<��*�$�&���&�������
��&���
&������������0<00�2;'�;;;0�
��� �
�
��
� �� ����
*� 3��� ���
� ��)��������� ��&� ��� �����&
� )

&������ ��� ��8�
���*���*���*��G�����
�����E
����
�*�
�

#$)*0#7'�
�
�)�%)&#�&/#�-(72&#�(")0,7#7!�
�
�)� 2+"##� &/#� 1"#2&,)%� ).� 2� �2$6� �")-(� &)� 1)%$,7#"� &/#� "#0,#9� 5#,%+�
-%7#"&26#%� 58� ���� )%� 12"#� (")0,$,)%� .)"� (#)(*#� 9,&/� 7#3#%&,2� ,%�
�,*&$/,"#!��
�

+1� �(72&#�.")3��"#2&��#$&#"%��35-*2%1#��#"0,1#�F����G��),%&��#2*&/�
	0#"0,#9�H��1"-&,%8��)33,&&##�
�
����� �
�
�� ����
�� ��&� ���
�&
&� ��
� �

����� �)� ��
� E����� �������

� ��� //�
3
�������/0-1���&����
����
������
����������
��������

*�
�
4#(�� ���� ��:���
&� ��� ��
� ������ #
��
��� (�������
� �
����
� 3���&������
,�������#(�3,�����3
�������/0-1*�
�
�
����
��
�)������
� ����
����
&��������� ���

����
����
�*� � $���������
&� �����
��
�
����� �� �����)������ &
�
���������� �������� ��
� -;������
��
����
*� �4#(��
���

&� ����� ���� �� ����
� )��� ����
���� ����
������ ��
��� �
�����
�� �
�
�
���
���
&�&�
����������)���������
�*��$���������

&����������
�������������)������
����
������
:���
&*��
�
���&��
�� ���
����������������
�
���������� ����
*� � $���������
&� ����� )��
���)�H-�
����������&��

���
��
&������
���,��������
��*� �	��
&������
��
���
&�)��������
����� ����&� 
:���
� ��� H'� �������� �)� ��
� ���
� �
�
�� �)� �
�)������
� ������
&*��
,�
�
��
�
�����
�����������
�������)���
��
���������
�����������������
������
��������
��������)���
�����
�*��$����������
��
&������������������������

�����&�
��������?��������@���������
&��������
��
��4����������������������
�
���*�
�
3��������� ��
� ��:��������� �)� 4#(��� ��
��� �
�&:����
��� ��� �����
����� �����
����
*� ��#(�3,������
��
�&:����
�����
� ���59
�
�����
���
&����
�����)��� ��
�
�������

� ��� ��&��
� ��
�� ��� ���))���� ������ ��� �
������� ��� ��
� )���
�� 4#(��
�
�&:����
��*���
�

Page 9



�
�
�
�

�

�
�
�

,�
�E������������

�&������
&���
�)����
��)�����������)��#(�3,*��$���������

&�
����� ��
�����������)� ��
� E������������

�����&���
���
������
��������������
�
��������
&������&���&�����
������
�
����������

��)���&������������&�����
��*�
�
$���������
�&
&��������
�)����
���---��
����
������&�������
����-0�"����*��,�
�
�������

� ���� ����
��
&� ��� �
��� ����� ��
� ����
�
�������� �)� ��
� �
����
� ���
&��
� ��&� �
����
&� ��� �����)������ �����
���� ����� �
������ �)� ��������
�� �
����
&
������
&�������
�
�
��
���
�*��
�
,�
� �������

� ���� ����
��
&� ������ ��
� �������
� ������� ��� ?�
����
@�

�
��
���
���)���
����&���������)��������������
��������������
�&����������
���
����� �������� ���&�����*� $���������

&� ����� ��
��������

� �����&���&
����
���
����&����������
9
����
��������
�---��
����
*�
�
$���������)���
&��������
�)����
�����������)�4#(������&������
���&
����
�����
�#(�3,���&�����
������#(�3,��
�
������
�����
����)��&
���)����������
������
����������������������������
��
�����������������
��
����
�������
�
���
��*�,�
�
��������� ����� �
� ����������� #�������
� �������� ��� )����
� ��� &������� ��
�
�
������
�
���*�
�

#$)*0#7'�
�
�)�%)&#�&/#�"#()"&�.")3�������!��
�
�)�-%7#"&26#�2�"2(,7�$1"-&,%8�#<#"1,$#�,%&)�&/#���������$#"0,1#!�
�

+'� �(72&#�)%��)%&,%-,%+��#2*&/12"#�F���G�
�
,�
��������

��
�
��
&���
�)������
�����)������
�����,����4��������-/� ����
/0-/� ��&� �
:�
��
&� ��� ��&��
� �
����� ��� ��
� ������� ����� ��� ���� �

����� ���
 �������/0-1*��,������������
:�
�����&
)
��
&�������"�����/0-1*���
�
�
������4����� �
��������
����� �)� 
������� ��&�����
��� ��)
���� 
���#�������
�
��&���
�4
������
�&��)��
�)������
���
�������&�#���)���
�����
������&��
�
���������������
�������
�������
�
���*�
�
$����������
&��������
�����������&��

��������
&��������������
����������
�
�
����������
������
�
&*��$���������)���
&��������
��
�������������)�����������)
������
 ��:������&�
�7����������
������)�B���������&�����
�����)
������#�������
���4*��
�

#$)*0#7'�
�
�/#��)33,&&##�%)&#7�&/#�-(72&#�)%��)%&,%-,%+��#2*&/12"#�
�
�)� "#1#,0#� 2%� -(72&#� )%� &/#� (")+"#$$� ).� &/#� 21&,)%� (*2%� 2&� &/#�
�)33,&&##@$�3##&,%+�,%��#(&#35#"!�
�

Page 10



�
�
�
�

�

�
�
�

++� �(72&#�)%�12"7,)02$1-*2"�$#"0,1#$�(",)"�&)�&"2%$.#"�&)�$(#1,2*,$&�
1)33,$$,)%,%+�
�
(����
��������

��

����������
�-.� �������/0-1��#�������
���4���
�
��
&���
���
�� ��� ��
� ��������� �
��
�� �)� ��������� �
����
�� ��&� ��
� ������������� ��� ��
�
����������� �)� #�������
*� � ,�
� �������

� 
9��
��
&� ����
� ����
���� ������
�
��
�� ��&� �
:�
��
&� ��� ��&��
� ������ ��� ��
� �
����
� �����)
������ ��� ��
��������
�������������*�
�
	
����9�"�����&��#�������
���4����&� ����4��&������
�
��
&���
���&��
*��
,�
���4��
����
&�����
��
&���������
�������
&��
����
���&����)���
&��������
��

�����4�����)�������������
����
��)���#�������
���&��

���
��������
����
���
��
��� ��&� ����
&� ��&
�����&���� �)� ��
� ������������� )��� ��
� ����������� �)�
#�������
�)���
������
�@���
������������)����������������
��*�,�
�)������

������)�
��
���

������������������)���
&����(�����<�/0-1*�
�

#$)*0#7'�
�
�)�%)&#�&/#�"#()"&!�
�
�)�"#1#,0#�2%�-(72&#�.")3�&/#�����)%�&/#�9)"6�).�&/#�$&##",%+�+")-(�2&�
,&$�3##&,%+�,%��)0#35#"�����!��
�

+2� �3#"+#%18��2**$��73,$$,)%$�,%��2*,$5-"8��)33-%,&8��"#2�
�
,�
�#�������
�3�������&�	��
��
����������
���/0-/7-'���&���������������
������
�
�
� ��
�
��
&� ��� ��
� �������

� ��� 
��
��
�� /0-/*� ,�
� ����� ���
� �)�

�
��
���� �&��������� )���� ��
� ���������� ���������� (�
�� )��� )����� ����
:�
�����
&*�(��
�����
9����������
�&����)����
�������
:�
��
&*�
�
I�
����))��&���
�
��
&���
��
������&
����������
�&����)�����
���
������:�
�����*�$��
��������
��
&��������
���
��
������
���)�)����������
����������&�����������������
����������������&����
��

�����
������)�����
��
��������������)�
�&
�����
���
*�
�
$�� ���� ���)���
&� ����� ��
� &���� ���� �
��
&� )����
��� 
9�������� &
�����������
���
�� �
�&
���� ���
���)� )���� ���� ���
�� ��� ��������� ��&� ����������
� &���� )��� ��
��
2+@������
�
���*�
�
,�
��������

�:�
�����
&����
��)���
�)����
��������
��������
����
�������)���
�
&�������&����

&������ ��
�
9�
����
� )��&������)� ��
��
����*� � $���������

&������
��
� &���� ���� ���� �
��
�
������
� ��� ��������
� �)� �
������ ��� �
&��������� �
7
�&�����������������
����
&�)����*�
�
,�
��������

�����
��
&� ����� ��
� �
���������&� ����� �������� ��
�C�&
���
���
��
(������&�����������
������&����������������������&�,������������*�
�

#$)*0#7'�
�

Page 11



�
�
�
�

�

�
�
�

�)�%)&#�&/#�"#()"&�)%��3#"+#%18��2**$��73,$$,)%$�,%��2*,$5-"8!�
�

+.� 
#1)33#%72&,)%$�.)"�	H��
2%2+#3#%&��)33,&&##�
�
,�
��������

������
:���
&�����&
���)����
���)������������������
��
������
�����
��� �
� �������
&� ��� ��
� C�
���
�� ��&� ��������� "����
�
��� �������

A� ��
�
����
��
&� ��
��� ��� )���� ��
��������)� ��
��������

@���������������
� ��� ��
�
�
���������*��
�

#$)*0#7'�
�
�/#� .)**)9,%+� &)(,1$� &)� 5#� "#1)33#%7#7� 2$� *#+218� ,&#3$� &)� &/#� 	� H� ��

2%2+#3#%&� �)33,&&##� .)"� ()$$,5*#� ,%1*-$,)%� ,%� &/#� 	0#"0,#9� 2%7�
�1"-&,%8�9)"6�(")+"233#�,%�&/#�%#9��)-%1,*'�
�
�/#�.)**)9,%+��2$6��")-($�2"#�"#�#$&25*,$/#7'�
I� �*,%,12*��)33,$$,)%,%+��")-(�
I� �"2%$.#"$�&)�12"#�
I� �),%&��,"�E-2*,&8�F9,&/��%0,")%3#%&G�
�
�9)�%#9��2$6��")-($�2"#�.)"3#7'��
I� �)%&,%#%1#��#"0,1#$�
I� 
#0,#9�).��#"0,1#$�58������
�
��"2(,7�$1"-&,%8�,$�-%7#"&26#%'�

•� ��������$#"0,1#��
�
�(72&#�"#()"&$�2"#�"#1#,0#7�,%�"#$(#1&�).'�
I� �2"7,)02$1-*2"�$#"0,1#$�F�)0#35#"G�
I� ����F�#(&#35#"G�
I� �����F2%%-2**8G�
�

+<� �2"&%#"�	"+2%,$2&,)%$��(72&#�
�
4�
���#
��
�������������4#���
,�
� �������

� ���
&� ��
� �
����� )���� ��
� ���
)� 59
�����
� �)� 4#�� ��� �
��
����
�� �
������� ��� 4#�� ��&� ���������� �
����
�� ������� #�������
*� !
����
"�
������ ��&��
&� ��
� �������

� ��&� ����
&� ����� ��
� ,����� ���� ��
��
&� ���
���)���� ����� ��
�� H-�� ����� �
� ���
��
&� ��� �&&�������� ����
�� ����� �
��� �����
�
������
�����&
��������������
���)���
���)���������&
����
&��������
��
��*��
�
"�� "�
������ ���)���
&� ����� 4#�� ����&� &
�
���� ������� ������ �������� ����
������
�� �)� �B�� ����
�������� ��&� ����� ��
� �B�� ����&� �
����� ��� )����
� ���

������
���
�����
��
&���
��*��
�
,�
��������

� ����
&� ���
��)� ��
� ����
��&
����
&� ��� ��
�3�������%
����� �����
������
�� �����
��� ����� ���
� :������� ��&�� ��� ������������ ����
��� �
��
��*� "��

Page 12



�
�
�
�

�

�
�
�

"�
������ ���)���
&� ����� ��
��
�� �
�&�����
����4#������ �������
&� ��� ��
�
����
���)��
��
�����&�����������*�
�
%�����J���
&����������	����
���,������%J���
�
3����
����,������������
)�C�
�������C))��
���%J����������&
������&��
*��
�
$���������)���
&������%J����&�
��
�
&���+��
�������
�����)
���������
�
��������
��
� �����
���� �
����� (��������*� %J�� ��&� ����� ��&� )��� ��&� �

�� ����&
&� ��
�������� ������
�
��� ����� ����� ��� �
&��
� ��
����������� ���
� ��� ��
���������� ���
-+K*�
�
%J�� ����� ����
&� ��
�#�������
� ���
��� 
�
��� ���"����� 2� /0-/�� ������ ���� ��
����
��*�
�
%J����&������ �
�
�����
�
��
&� ���� )��������������)�4��
�����*�,���� ������
&�--�
������� ���
������ ��&� )��
� ���))� 4��
������ ���� ����� �
��
�
��� ��
� ��
��� �)�
�
��
�����&����������
����������)�4��
�����������)��
�����
���&
��4��
�����*�


�����1000��
���
����
&�����������������)������&�1/K*�
�
%J����������������
&���������
��������
��
�������&������
�
9�����&������&
���&�
���
�
��
���� ���
� ����� ������� �
�
������� ��&� ��
� ������ ��� &�������
�����
����
���������
����

&�������*�
�
,�
� �������

� &������
&� 
�
��
���� &���� ����
������� ��&� ���
&� ����� �
������
�����&
�����
��&�����)��&������������
�
��
���
������&��
���
)��*��
�
�
����������
��������
�4���
�����
��
������������)��
����������������&
&������&��
*��
�
�
������������������
������
))
���)����-�(�����/0-1*��,�
��
�����)��
����������
����&��
������������������)�#$
��������&����
�
�����
�
���*�
�
�
����������������&�������
����
��������
��
�����"�����
����������������������
�
����� ��&� ������� ���
� ��&� ���� &
���
��*� $�� �&&������� �
����������#�������
������
���
� �
����
�&������� ����
����������5�����&����&��&���
� ��
����
�B�������
��������������������������
������
��
���������
������������������
����)�����
��*�
�
���������� ����� ����� ���� ��� �� ������������ �
����
�� �����&���� �&���
� ��&�
&��
�����������
���������������
����)��
�������
*�$����������
&�������
����������
���
&��������&������
��
������)���)��������������#$
���&����������&�������
��
&�
������
�������������
��������*�
�
,�
�����������
����
&��
������������&���������
�4���
�� ��� ��
��������

�
��&�����
&������ ����������
&������ ��
��
���������������&��
��������
��)������ ���
���� �

�� ����� ��
&
�
������#$
*� �
���������� ����&� ���� ��� �� ��������� )��
�&��
�����&��������
�����&�������
�����
�������
������&
������������
��
����*�
�

Page 13



�
�
�
�

�

�
�
�

,�
� �������

� :�
��
&� ���� ��)��������� ��� ����
���� ����&� )

&� �����
�
���������*� $�)�������������&������
� �������� �������������
���� �����&���� ��
�
�������

��)������
����������&������������
�����������&��
������*�
�
$���������

&�����������
��������

���&��
�����������������)�����������������
�������������������&����������
��)����
����������*���
�

#$)*0#7'�
�
�)�%)&#�&/#�-(72&#$�(")0,7#7!���
�

+;� �"+#%&��&#3$�
�
,�
�
��
�
�������
�����
�������
&������
��

����*�
�

20� �2&#�).��#<&�
##&,%+�
�
10�"���/0-1�
�

�
�

,�
�C))��
�������������&��
&���
�
������
���������
��	������)��
���������
�
����
���&��
������
��0-//+��.-</--��
7���������
�*����L��������
*���*���

�
��
���
�:����
���������������������&��
������
��0-//+��.-1--'G.-1--+�

�
�

Page 14



!"#$%&'()*+$",'&+-)"!",+./0"1$*)'2"3+%&*)/0"4/)5"637"8-9%)"!":/-(5";<=> ???@(A(@+-B@9C =

!"#$%&'()"*+%$),'

We are the regulator: Our job is to check whether hospitals, care homes and care 
services are meeting essential standards.

Royal United Hospital Bath NHS Trust

D*-'()+-%"EFF*('%G",+./0"1$*)'2"3+%&*)/0G"H+IJ'"
K/-CG"4/)5G""4L=">6M

8'0N"<=;;OP;Q>>=

D/)'"+F"#$%&'()*+$%N <R"S'J-9/-.";<=>
<O"S'J-9/-.";<=>
<P"S'J-9/-.";<=>

D/)'"+F"K9J0*(/)*+$N":/-(5"
;<=>

T'"*$%&'()'2")5'"F+00+?*$B"%)/$2/-2%"*$"-'%&+$%'")+"(+$('-$%")5/)"%)/$2/-2%"?'-'$U)
J'*$B"I')@"85*%"*%"?5/)"?'"F+9$2N

Respecting and involving people who use 

services

L()*+$"$''2'2

Care and welfare of people who use services L()*+$"$''2'2

Cooperating with other providers L()*+$"$''2'2

Records L()*+$"$''2'2

Agenda Item 11

Page 15



!"#$%&'()*+$",'&+-)"!",+./0"1$*)'2"3+%&*)/0"4/)5"637"8-9%)"!":/-(5";<=> ???@(A(@+-B@9C ;

Details about this location

,'B*%)'-'2"K-+V*2'- ,+./0"1$*)'2"3+%&*)/0"4/)5"637"8-9%)

EV'-V*'?"+F")5'"
%'-V*('

,+./0"1$*)'2"3+%&*)/0"4/)5"*%"/$"/(9)'"5+%&*)/0"+$")5'"'2B'"
+F"4/)5"W9%)"+V'-"/"I*0'"F-+I")5'"('$)-'"+F")5'"(*).@"85'"
5+%&*)/0"(+V'-%"/"0+(/0"&+&90/)*+$"$9IJ'-*$B"/-+9$2"5/0F"/"
I*00*+$"&'+&0'"*$"4/)5"/$2"%+I'"&/-)%"+F"6+-)5"X/%)"
7+I'-%')"/$2"T'%)'-$"T*0)%5*-'@

8.&'"+F"%'-V*(' L(9)'"%'-V*('%"?*)5"+V'-$*B5)"J'2%

,'B90/)'2"/()*V*)*'% L%%'%%I'$)"+-"I'2*(/0")-'/)I'$)"F+-"&'-%+$%"2')/*$'2"
9$2'-")5'":'$)/0"3'/0)5"L()"=YQ>

D*/B$+%)*("/$2"%(-''$*$B"&-+('29-'%

:/$/B'I'$)"+F"%9&&0."+F"J0++2"/$2"J0++2"2'-*V'2"&-+29()%

69-%*$B"(/-'

79-B*(/0"&-+('29-'%

8'-I*$/)*+$"+F"&-'B$/$(*'%

8-'/)I'$)"+F"2*%'/%'G"2*%+-2'-"+-"*$W9-.

Page 16



!"#$%&'()*+$",'&+-)"!",+./0"1$*)'2"3+%&*)/0"4/)5"637"8-9%)"!":/-(5";<=> ???@(A(@+-B@9C >

Contents

When you read this report, you may find it useful to read the sections towards the back 
called 'About CQC inspections' and 'How we define our judgements'."
"

K/B'

Summary of this inspection:

T5."?'"(/--*'2"+9)")5*%"*$%&'()*+$ P

3+?"?'"(/--*'2"+9)")5*%"*$%&'()*+$ P

T5/)"&'+&0'")+02"9%"/$2"?5/)"?'"F+9$2 P

T5/)"?'"5/V'")+02")5'"&-+V*2'-")+"2+ P

:+-'"*$F+-I/)*+$"/J+9)")5'"&-+V*2'- O

Our judgements for each standard inspected:

,'%&'()*$B /$2 *$V+0V*$B &'+&0' ?5+ 9%' %'-V*('% R

H/-' /$2 ?'0F/-' +F &'+&0' ?5+ 9%' %'-V*('% Q

H++&'-/)*$B ?*)5 +)5'- &-+V*2'-% =;

,'(+-2% =P

Information primarily for the provider:

L()*+$"?'"5/V'")+02")5'"&-+V*2'-")+")/C' =R

About CQC Inspections =Q

How we define our judgements =Y

Glossary of terms we use in this report ;=

Contact us ;>

Page 17



Summary of this inspection

Why we carried out this inspection

We carried out this inspection in response to concerns that one or more of the essential 
standards of quality and safety were not being met. 

This was an unannounced inspection. 

How we carried out this inspection

We looked at the personal care or treatment records of people who use the service, 
carried out a visit on 4 February 2013, 5 February 2013 and 6 February 2013, observed 
how people were being cared for and checked how people were cared for at each stage of 
their treatment and care. We talked with people who use the service, talked with carers 
and / or family members, talked with staff and were accompanied by a specialist advisor. 

What people told us and what we found

This inspection visit was prompted by information that had been shared with us.  Concerns 
were raised about the manner in which some patients had been discharged without 
adequate information and support.  Because of this we took a nurse with us who had 
expert knowledge in discharge arrangements.

During our inspection we looked at two discrete areas of care at the hospital.  These were 
the older people’s wards and the day surgery unit (DSU). We also looked at pharmacy 
arrangements for providing medication for people to take home on discharge. 
We met and talked with many patients during our visit. Where patients were not able to 
talk with us for various reasons, we spent time observing how care and support was 
delivered. We saw and were given written evidence from the trust. This included patients' 
notes, hospital records and recordings of their clinical observations.  

We met with consultant medical staff, pharmacists, therapy staff, registered nurses and 
healthcare assistants. All the staff we met with showed a professional and caring attitude 
towards their patients. We also met with hospital directors and senior management staff, 
they explained to us that the hospital had recently been under unprecedented pressure.
Inpatient admissions though the emergency department had increased by 13.9% in the 
current financial year against the previous four year average. This had meant the hospital 
was using the day surgery unit to accommodate inpatients, when its intended use was for 
short stays for up to 23 hours. 

We found the trust was not ensuring they met all patients’ treatment and care needs on the 
day surgery unit. This was because the day surgery unit was being used as a facility to 
care for inpatients who would normally be accommodated elsewhere in the hospital. The 
environment and the care arrangements on this unit were not suited to ensuring inpatients 
privacy, dignity, health and welfare needs were met. Risks to their care and treatment 
were not being adequately managed. After our visit we raised concerns with the trust 
about the impact of this and the accommodation of inpatients on the DSU was stopped.

| Inspection Report | Royal United Hospital Bath NHS Trust | March 2013 www.cqc.org.uk 4
Page 18



| Inspection Report | Royal United Hospital Bath NHS Trust | March 2013 www.cqc.org.uk 5

We found record keeping was not consistently completed, including records of patients’
fluid intake and output and completion of the trust’s own discharge documentation. Staff 
were not using the trust’s system of documentation to support discharge planning.  This 
meant that the system in place to ensure correct information and support resources were   
put in place for patients discharge was not always followed. For those patients with more
complex needs this created inconvenience and risk for those patients ongoing care 
elsewhere

You can see our judgements on the front page of this report.

What we have told the provider to do

We have asked the provider to send us a report by , setting out the action 

they will take to meet the standards. We will check to make sure that this action is taken. 
Where providers are not meeting essential standards, we have a range of enforcement 
powers we can use to protect the health, safety and welfare of people who use this service 
(and others, where appropriate). When we propose to take enforcement action, our 
decision is open to challenge by the provider through a variety of internal and external 
appeal processes. We will publish a further report on any action we take. 

More information about the provider

Please see our website www.cqc.org.uk for more information, including our most recent 
judgements against the essential standards. You can contact us using the telephone 
number on the back of the report if you have additional questions. 

There is a glossary at the back of this report which has definitions for words and phrases 
we use in the report. 

Page 19



!"#$%&'()*+$",'&+-)"!",+./0"1$*)'2"3+%&*)/0"4/)5"637"8-9%)"!":/-(5";<=> ???@(A(@+-B@9C R

Our judgements for each standard inspected

Respecting and involving people who use services L()*+$"$''2'2

People should be treated with respect, involved in discussions about their care 

and treatment and able to influence how the service is run

Our judgement

85'"&-+V*2'-"?/%"$+)"I'')*$B")5*%"%)/$2/-2@

#$&/)*'$)%"/((+II+2/)'2"+$")5'"2/."%9-B'-."9$*)"/)")5'")*I'"+F")5'"*$%&'()*+$"V*%*)"?'-'"
$+)"5/V*$B")5'*-"&-*V/(."/$2"2*B$*)."I/*$)/*$'2@

T'"5/V'"W92B'2")5/)")5*%"5/%"/"I*$+-"*I&/()"+$"&'+&0'"?5+"9%'")5'"%'-V*('G"/$2"5/V'")+02
)5'"&-+V*2'-")+")/C'"/()*+$@"K0'/%'"%''")5'"UL()*+$U"%'()*+$"?*)5*$")5*%"-'&+-)@"

Reasons for our judgement

L)")5*%"*$%&'()*+$"?'"0++C'2"/)")?+"2*FF'-'$)"&/-)%"+F")5'"5+%&*)/0@""85'%'"?'-'")5'"+02'-"
&'+&0'U%"?/-2%"/$2")5'"2/."%9-B'-."9$*)"ZD71[@"

T'"/%C'2"&/)*'$)%"/$2")5'*-"(/-'-%"/J+9)")5'*-"'\&'-*'$('%"+F")5'*-"%)/."+$")5'"D71"/$2"
0++C'2"/)")5'"9$*)U%"I+%)"-'('$)"%9-V'."F''2J/(C"F-+I"&/)*'$)%@"EV'-/00"F''2J/(C"?/%"
$'B/)*V'"/J+9)")5'"(/-'"'$V*-+$I'$)"*I&/()"+$"&-*V/(."/$2"2*B$*).@""K/)*'$)%"2'%(-*J'2")5'
9$*)"/%"J'*$B"](-/I&'2]G"])++"5+)]G"")5'"?/-2"*%"V'-."%)9FF.G")5'."/-'")-.*$B")+"F*)"*$")++"I/$.
&/)*'$)%@]""

K/)*'$)%U"-'&+-)'2"2*%)9-J'2"%0''&"29'")+")5'"/I+9$)"+F"$*B5)")*I'"/()*V*)."+$")5'"?/-2@"
E$'"&/)*'$)")+02"9%"]&'+&0'"/-'"J'*$B"/2I*))'2"/00")5'")*I'G"J+)5"2/."/$2"$*B5)]@"7)/FF"
-'&+-)'2")5'"9$%9*)/J*0*)."+F")5'"(/-'"'$V*-+$I'$)")+")5'"$''2%"+F"/"&/)*'$)"?*)5"/"0'/-$*$B"
2*FF*(90).G"?5+"?+902"$+-I/00."J'"B*V'$"I+-'"+$'")+"+$'"/))'$)*+$G"J9)"*$%)'/2"5/2")+"J'"
0'F)"+$")5'*-"+?$"F+-"0+$B"&'-*+2%"+F")*I'@"

7)/FF"/$2"&/)*'$)%")+02"9%"/$2"?'"%/?")5'-'"?'-'"*$/2'A9/)'"J/)5*$B"F/(*0*)*'%"F+-")5'"
*$&/)*'$)%"/((+II+2/)'2"+$")5'"D71@"85'-'"?/%"W9%)"+$'"I*\'2"%'\"%5+?'-"F+-";;"
&/)*'$)%"?5*(5"?/%"0+(/)'2"*$"/$"/%%*%)'2")+*0')G"?5*(5"I'/$)")5'-'"?'-'"0+$B"?/*)%"F+-"
&/)*'$)%")+"%5+?'-@"L0)5+9B5")5'-'"?'-'")?+"%'&/-/)'")+*0')%"F+-"I/0'"/$2"F'I/0'"9%'G")5'"
+)5'-")?+"/%%*%)'2")+*0')%"?'-'"F+-"I*\'2"%'\"9%'@"85'"%*$C%"/V/*0/J0'"*$")5'")+*0')%"(+902"
$+)"%/)*%F/()+-*0."J'"9%'2"F+-"?/%5*$B"/%")5'-'"?'-'"$+"&09B%@""E$"+$'"+F")5'"2/.%"+F"+9-"
V*%*)")5'"%5+?'-"5/2"J'(+I'"F0++2'2"/$2"(+902"$+)"J'"9%'2"/)">&I@"85'"%5+?'-"5'/2"?/%
F*\'2"/$2"+$'"&'-%+$"%/*2")5'."(+902"$+)"9%'"*)"J'(/9%'"+F")5*%@""

L"%)/FF"I'IJ'-"%/*2"]*)%"&9-&+%'"J9*0)"F+-"2/."%9-B'-.G"*)U%"W9%)"$+)"%')"+9)"F+-"*$&/)*'$)%@"
85'"%&/('%"F*)")5-''")-+00'.%"/$2"%+")5'"(9-)/*$%"F*)")5'$@"#F"?'"5/V'"J'2%")5'$")5'"(9-)/*$%"
W9%)"2+$U)"F*)@]

Page 20



!"#$%&'()*+$",'&+-)"!",+./0"1$*)'2"3+%&*)/0"4/)5"637"8-9%)"!":/-(5";<=> ???@(A(@+-B@9C ^

T'"%/?")5'-'"?'-'"$+"?*$2+?%"*$")5'"?+I'$U%"&/-)"+F")5'"?/-2@"L"&/)*'$)")+02"9%"]*)U%"0*C'"
0*V*$B"+$"/$"/*-(-/F)"/00")5'")*I'@]"E$'"&/)*'$)")+02"9%"]*F"%+I'"+$'"9%'%")5'"(+II+2'"+$"
)5'"?/-2G")5'$"?'"(/$"/00"%I'00"*)@"T5'-'"*%")5'"2*B$*)."*$")5/)_]"

LF)'-"+9-"V*%*)"?'"-/*%'2"(+$('-$%"?*)5")5'")-9%)"/J+9)")5'"*I&/()"+F")5'"2/."%9-B'-."9$*)"
(/-'"'$V*-+$I'$)"+$")5'"&-*V/(."/$2"2*B$*)."+F"*$&/)*'$)%"/((+II+2/)'2"+$")5'"D71"/$2"
)5*%"?/%"%)+&&'2"%5+-)0."/F)'-"+9-"*$%&'()*+$"V*%*)@

E$")5'"+02'-"&'+&0'U%"?/-2%"?'"%/?")5/)"&'+&0'U%"&-*V/(."/$2"2*B$*)."?'-'"-'%&'()'2@

Page 21



!"#$%&'()*+$",'&+-)"!",+./0"1$*)'2"3+%&*)/0"4/)5"637"8-9%)"!":/-(5";<=> ???@(A(@+-B@9C Q

Care and welfare of people who use services L()*+$"$''2'2

People should get safe and appropriate care that meets their needs and supports 

their rights

Our judgement

85'"&-+V*2'-"?/%"$+)"I'')*$B")5*%"%)/$2/-2@

K/)*'$)%"J'*$B"(/-'2"F+-"/$2")-'/)'2"+$")5'"2/."%9-B'-."9$*)"ZD71["?'-'"$+)"5/V*$B")5'*-"
(/-'"$''2%"/2'A9/)'0."/%%'%%'2G"&0/$$'2"/$2"2'0*V'-'2@""85'"(/-'"/$2")-'/)I'$)"
/--/$B'I'$)%"+$")5'"9$*)"?'-'"$+)"+-B/$*%'2"/-+9$2")5'"-/$B'"+F"(/-'"$''2%"+F")5'"
&/)*'$)%"/((+II+2/)'2")5'-'@

T'"5/V'"W92B'2")5/)")5*%"5/%"/"I+2'-/)'"*I&/()"+$"&'+&0'"?5+"9%'")5'"%'-V*('G"/$2"5/V'
)+02")5'"&-+V*2'-")+")/C'"/()*+$@"K0'/%'"%''")5'"UL()*+$U"%'()*+$"?*)5*$")5*%"-'&+-)@"

Reasons for our judgement

D9-*$B"+9-"*$%&'()*+$"?'"0++C'2"/)")?+"2*%(-')'"/-'/%"+F"(/-'"/)")5'"5+%&*)/0@""85*%"?/%")5'
2/."%9-B'-."9$*)"ZD71["/$2")5-''"?/-2%"/)")5'"5+%&*)/0"2'%*B$/)'2"F+-")5'"(/-'"+F"+02'-"
&'+&0'@"T'"I')"?*)5"%)/FFG"*$(092*$B"(+$%90)/$)"I'2*(/0"%)/FFG")5'-/&*%)%"/$2"-'B*%)'-'2"
$9-%'%@""85'."/00"%5+?'2"/"&-+F'%%*+$/0"/$2"(/-*$B"/))*)92'")+?/-2%")5'*-"&/)*'$)%@"7'$*+-"
$9-%'%"%&+C'"?*)5"9%"/J+9)"/%%'%%I'$)%"+F"-*%C"F+-"+02'-"&/)*'$)%G"%9(5"/%"-*%C"+F"F/00*$BG"
&-'%%9-'"90('-/)*+$"/$2"I/0$9)-*)*+$@""85'.")+02"9%"/J+9)")5'"/()*+$%")5'.")++C"?5'$"
&'+&0'"?'-'"/%%'%%'2"/%"J'*$B"/)"-*%CG"*$(092*$B"(/-'"&0/$%"/$2"9%'"+F"I+$*)+-*$B")++0%"
%9(5"/%"-+9)*$'"U(+IF+-)"-+9$2%U")+"(5'(C"+$"&/)*'$)%"?'0F/-'"$''2%@"

7+I'"&/)*'$)%"?'"I')"?*)5"0++C'2"(+IF+-)/J0'"/$2")+02"9%"5+?"5'0&F90"%)/FF"5/2"J''$@""T'
%/?"%)/FF")++C")*I'")+"'\&0/*$")+"&/)*'$)%"5+?")5'."?'-'"B+*$B")+"5'0&")5'I@"L"&/)*'$)")+02"
9%"/J+9)"/"-'('$)"/%%'%%I'$)")5'."5/2"2+$'"?*)5"/$"+((9&/)*+$/0")5'-/&*%)"%+")5'."(+902"
I/C'")5'I%'0V'%"/"(9&"+F")'/"*$2'&'$2'$)0."/B/*$@"L$+)5'-"&/)*'$)")+02"9%")5'."?'-'"B0/2"
)5'*-"*$)-/`V'$+9%"]2-*&]"?/%"$+?"2+?$G"%+")5'."(+902"]J'"/"J*)"I+-'"/()*V'@]"E)5'-%")+02"
9%")5'."F'0)")5'*-"(/-'"$''2%"5/2"$+)"J''$"I')@"E$'"&'-%+$")+02"9%")5'."5/2"$+)"5/2"
%9FF*(*'$)"2-*$C%G"/$+)5'-")+02"9%")5'."?'-'"$+)"J'*$B")9-$'2")+"-'29('")5'"-*%C"+F"%C*$"
&-'%%9-'"2/I/B'@"T'"%/?"+)5'-"&/)*'$)%")5/)"5/2"%+I'"(+B$*)*V'"*I&/*-I'$)"?5+"?'-'"
$+)"5/V*$B"/00")5'*-"$''2%"I')@"

T'"V*%*)'2")5'"D71"+$"/00")5-''"2/.%"+F"+9-"*$%&'()*+$"/$2"F+9$2")5'."(/-'2"F+-"J+)5"2/."
(/%'%"/$2"*$&/)*'$)%"+$")5'"%/I'"?/-2@""L"%)/FF"I'IJ'-"'\&0/*$'2")+"9%"5+?")5'"(/-'"+F"
*$&/)*'$)%"?5+"?+902"$+-I/00."J'"(/-'2"F+-"'0%'?5'-'"*$")5'"5+%&*)/0"(/I'"/J+9)"/$2")5'$
A9*(C0."'%(/0/)'2@"]#)"%)/-)'2"/%"+$'"+-")?+"&/)*'$)%G")5'$"*)"W9%)"B+)"I+-'"/$2"I+-'"/$2"
I+-'@]"E$"R"S'J-9/-.";<=>G";="+F")5'";;"&/)*'$)%"(/-'2"F+-"+$"D71"?'-'"*$&/)*'$)%"/$2"
+$0."+$'"?/%"/"2/."%9-B'-."&/)*'$)@""T'"%/?"*$&/)*'$)%"+$")5'"D71"%)/.'2"F+-"/"-/$B'"+F"
29-/)*+$%G"J9)"I/$."&/)*'$)%"%)/.'2"F+-"I+-'")5/$"/"F'?"2/.%G"%+I'"F+-"/"?''C"+-")?+"
?''C%@"E$"O"S'J-9/-.";<=>"?'"0++C'2"/)"F*V'"&/)*'$)%"(/-'"&/)5?/."*$"2')/*0@"8?+"+F")5'%'
&/)*'$)%"5/2"J''$"+$"D71"F+-"I+-'")5/$"+$'"?''CG"/$2"+$'"F+-")?+"?''C%@"

Page 22



!"#$%&'()*+$",'&+-)"!",+./0"1$*)'2"3+%&*)/0"4/)5"637"8-9%)"!":/-(5";<=> ???@(A(@+-B@9C Y

#$&/)*'$)%"?'-'"F-+I"/"-/$B'"+F"%&'(*/0)*'%"?*)5*$")5'"5+%&*)/0@""L"I'IJ'-"+F"%)/FF")+02"9%"
)5*%"?/%"2*FF*(90)G"/%"&/)*'$)%"?'-'"/)"]/00"%)/B'%]"*$")5'*-")-'/)I'$)@"85'")-9%)U%"B9*2'0*$'%"
F+-")-/$%F'-%")+")5'"9$*)"'\(092'2"&/)*'$)%"-'A9*-*$B"%0*2*$B"%(/0'"*$%90*$"/$2"/2I*%%*+$%"
2*-'()0."F-+I")5'"'I'-B'$(."2'&/-)I'$)@""85'%'"B9*2'0*$'%"?'-'"$+)"J'*$B"F+00+?'2@"L"
%)/FF"I'IJ'-"%/*2"]/)"F*-%)")5'."2*2$U)"%'$2"9%"/$.+$'"+$")5'"(0*$*(/0"*$(09%*+$"0*%)G"J9)"$+?"
)5'."2+@]

7)/FF")+02"9%")5'."?'-'"-9%5'2"/$2"2*2$U)"5/V'")*I'")+"(/--."+9)"/00")5'"&0/$$'2"(5'(C%"+$"
&/)*'$)%@"85'-'"?'-'"$+"U(+IF+-)"-+9$2%UG"/%"'0%'?5'-'"*$")5'"5+%&*)/0")+"(5'(C"+$"&/)*'$)%
?'0F/-'"$''2%@"K/)*'$)%")+02"9%"/J+9)")5'"*I&/()"+F")5*%@"E$'"&'-%+$")+02"9%"/)">@><&IG"
)5'."5/2"$+)"5/2"/"?/%5"/00"2/."J'(/9%'"%)/FF"?'-'")++"J9%."/$2"?'"%/?")5'."5/2"2-*'2"
F++2"+$")5'*-"B+?$"F-+I"09$(5")5-''"5+9-%"'/-0*'-@"L$+)5'-"&/)*'$)")+02"9%")5'."5/2"J''$""
]/J%+09)'0."B/%&*$B]G"/%"J')?''$"O@></I"/$2"09$(5")*I'"%)/FF"5/2"$+)"5/2")*I'")+"+FF'-"
)5'I"/"2-*$C@"T'"?'-'")+02"J."%)/FF")5/)")5*%"%5+-)/B'"+F")*I'"%+I')*I'%"&0/('2"&/)*'$)%"/)"
-*%C@"S+-"'\/I&0'G"?'"%/?"/$"*$(*2'$)"-'&+-)"F-+I")5'"5+%&*)/0"?5'-'")5'-'"5/2"$+)"J''$"
'$+9B5")*I'")+"(5'(C"/"&/)*'$)"?*)5"2*/J')'%"J0++2"%9B/-"0'V'0%"J'F+-'")5'."?'-'")/C'$")+"
)5'/)-'@"85'"&/)*'$)"?/%"2+(9I'$)'2"/%"J'5/V*$B"]%)-/$B'0.]"*$")5'"/$/'%)5')*("-++I"/$2"
?5'$")5'*-"J0++2"%9B/-"?/%"(5'(C'2"*)"?/%"/)"/$"9$%/F'"0'V'0@

,+9)*$'"%.%)'I%")5/)"?'-'"*$"&0/('"+$"*$&/)*'$)%"?/-2%G"%9(5"/%"/"&5/-I/(."%'-V*('"/$2"
'A9*&I'$)"%9&&0*'%"?'-'"J'*$B"I/$/B'2"J.")5'"D71"%)/FF@"85*%"-'29('2")5'"/I+9$)"+F"
)*I'")5'."5/2"/V/*0/J0'"F+-"&/)*'$)"(/-'@

4'(/9%'")5'"9$*)"?/%"+-B/$*%'2")+"(/-'"F+-"2/."&/)*'$)%G")5'-'"?/%"/$"*$/2'A9/)'"%.%)'I"
*$"&0/('"F+-"/%%'%%I'$)G"&0/$$*$B"/$2"'V/09/)*+$"+F")5'"(/-'"F+-"*$"&/)*'$)%@"T'"I')"?*)5"
F*V'"*$&/)*'$)%"+$")5'"D71"/$2"?'"?'-'"%5+?$")5'*-"-'(+-2%"*$(092*$B"'0'()-+$*("-'(+-2%"
+$")5'"(+I&9)'-@""S+9-"+F")5'%'"&/)*'$)%"?'-'"'02'-0."/$2"0++C'2"F-/*0@"6+$'"+F")5'"F*V'"
&/)*'$)%"5/2"/"-*%C"/%%'%%I'$)"F+-"&-'%%9-'"90('-%"(+I&0')'2"*$"0*$'"?*)5"B9*2'0*$'%"F-+I"
)5'"6/)*+$/0"#$%)*)9)'"F+-"3'/0)5"/$2"H0*$*(/0"X\('00'$('"Z6#HX[@""8?+"+F")5'%'"&/)*'$)%")+02"
9%")5'."?'-'"+$"J'2"-'%)@""E$'"+F")5'%'"&/)*'$)%")+02"9%")5'."2*2"$+)"5/V'")5'*-"&+%*)*+$"
(5/$B'2"-'B90/-0.")+"-'29('"%C*$"&-'%%9-'"2/I/B'@""85'"+)5'-"&/)*'$)")+02"9%"%+I'"%)/FF"
2*2"/%%*%)")5'I")+"(5/$B'")5'*-"&+%*)*+$G"J9)")5/)")5*%"?/%"]V/-*/J0'@]"6'*)5'-"+F")5'%'"
&/)*'$)%"5/2"/"(/-'"&0/$"/J+9)"&-'V'$)*+$"+F"-*%C"+F"&-'%%9-'"90('-/)*+$"+-")9-$"(5/-)%")+"
%5+?")5'*-"&+%*)*+$"*$"J'2"5/2"J''$"(5/$B'2"-'B90/-0.@"L")5*-2"&/)*'$)"0++C'2"F-/*0G")5'."
?'-'"$+)"/J0'")+")'00"9%"*F")5'*-"&+%*)*+$"?/%"(5/$B'2@""T'"0++C'2"/)")5*%"&/)*'$)U%"-'(+-2%@"
85'%'"%5+?'2")?+"+((/%*+$%"?5'$"(+$('-$%"/J+9)")*%%9'"2/I/B'"+V'-"&-'%%9-'"&+*$)%"
5/2"J''$"2+(9I'$)'2@""85'"&/)*'$)"2*2"$+)"5/V'"/"(/-'"&0/$"/J+9)"&-'V'$)*+$"+F"&-'%%9-'"
90('-/)*+$"+-"/")9-$"(5/-)@""T'"%&+C'"?*)5"%)/FFG")5'.")+02"9%")5'."2*2"$+)"5/V'"/(('%%")+"
)9-$"(5/-)%"+$")5'"D71@"

T'"0++C'2"/)")5'"/%%'%%I'$)"/$2"(/-'"&0/$$*$B"F+-"+02'-"&/)*'$)%"+$")5'"D71"/$2")5'"
+02'-"&'+&0'U%"?/-2%@"E$'"+F")5'"&/)*'$)%"?/%"$+)"/J0'")+")'00"9%"/J+9)"?5'-'")5'."?'-'"+-"
?5'-'")5'."$+-I/00."0*V'2@"85*%"&'-%+$"/$2"%'V'-/0"+)5'-"-'(+-2%"2+(9I'$)'2"*%%9'%"
-'0/)*$B")+"](+$F9%*+$]G"*$(092*$B"-'(+-2%"+F"-'F9%/0"+F"(/-'@"L"(+B$*)*V'"F9$()*+$")'%)"(/00'2"
)5'"/JJ-'V*/)'2"I'$)/0")'%)"ZL:8["5/2"J''$"(/--*'2"+9)"F+-")5'%'"&/)*'$)%@"85*%"(+$%*%)'2"
+F"A9'%)*+$%"/J+9)"+-*'$)/)*+$G"/B'"/$2"-'(/00@"L"(+$%90)/$)")+02"9%"*F")5'"%(+-'"?/%"0+?'-"
)5/$"'*B5)"+9)"+F")'$G")5*%")-*BB'-'2"/$+)5'-"I+-'"2')/*0'2")'%)@""

Page 23



| Inspection Report | Royal United Hospital Bath NHS Trust | March 2013 www.cqc.org.uk 10

This included more detailed questions, which led to a decision about the patient’s mental 
capacity assessment to make a range of specific decisions.  We saw two of the patients 
had AMT scores of six out of ten and one had a score of three out of ten. No other mental 
cognitive tests had been completed for these three patients. This meant no further 
assessment or care planning had been developed for the risks associated with their 
confusion.

We met with a patient who had been admitted to the DSU from accident and emergency.  
The person had visible bruising on them.  Their records, including computer records, 
indicated they had fallen at home. A body map of their bruising had not been completed.
On  5 February 2013, they did not have a risk assessment for falling or a care plan to 
indicate how their risk of falling was to be reduced. They also did not have a mobility 
assessment or communication assessment.  

After our visit we raised concerns with the trust about the impact of the day surgery unit 
care environment on the care and treatment of inpatients accommodated on the DSU and 
this was stopped shortly after our inspection visit. 

Page 24



Cooperating with other providers Action needed 

People should get safe and coordinated care when they move between different 
services

Our judgement

The provider was not meeting this standard. 

Patients discharged from the hospital cannot be confident that the hospital will 
communicate necessary information about their care and treatment to ensure continuity of 
care and minimise risks arising from the transfer of care. 

We have judged that this has a moderate impact on people who use the service, and have 
told the provider to take action. Please see the ‘Action’ section within this report.  

Reasons for our judgement

At this inspection we looked specifically at the way the hospital worked to ensure patients 
care needs would be continued by other care providers after discharge from the hospital. 
Concerns had been raised with us about the manner in which some patients had been 
discharged during a period of 'whole community black escalation' (where the hospital was 
not in a position to provide a service to any further patients and so were urgently 
discharging existing patients).

The director of nursing told us that during the ‘whole community black escalation' patients 
were discharged in the manner which they would normally have been discharged.  The 
only exception being they had arranged for some patients to see a social worker after 
discharge, when this would have normally have taken place before discharge.  
The trust’s policy on discharge states “an initial assessment and plan must be completed 
within 24 hours of admission…..the patient /carer must agree the discharge plan. This 
must be documented in the multi disciplinary notes……the discharging nurse from the 
ward must ensure that the patient and carer receive instructions on care required after 
leaving hospital…the discharging nurse from the ward, must complete the discharge 
checklist which is included in the nursing documentation.” .   

To review discharge arrangements we chose three patients in three different older 
people’s wards. Two were about to be discharged and the other had been discharged the 
previous day. We spoke with staff, read their records, met with the discharging consultant, 
spoke with the pharmacist and the staff at the care home to where they were discharged. 
We also reviewed care records for 13 patients discharged to, among other places, nursing 
homes during the black escalation and spoke to senior staff at two care homes to where 
they were discharged and relatives. 

In none of these cases had trust’s discharge form been completed, as required by the 
hospital’s discharge policy. Copies of discharge summaries written by the medical staff 
were available in 15 of 16 records where the patient had been discharged.  These 
contained information about diagnosis and treatment. They did not include any key 

| Inspection Report | Royal United Hospital Bath NHS Trust | March 2013 www.cqc.org.uk 11
Page 25



| Inspection Report | Royal United Hospital Bath NHS Trust | March 2013 www.cqc.org.uk 12

information about patients’ care and treatment needs as covered in the trust’s discharge 
planning form. For example a patient’s current continence status and any aids they used, 
how they were to be assisted to move or if they were able to take their medication 
independently, or needed support with medications, such as administering eye drops. 
There was no other documented information provided to receiving homes.  

Staff told us they had provided some information verbally. A few patients’ records 
documented discussions between the hospital ward staff and relevant other persons, prior 
to the patient’s discharge.  For example one person’s records showed the ward had 
contacted the patient’s intermediate care team to discuss their specific needs before they 
were discharged home.  Another patient had clear information about their nursing needs 
provided at the end of their medical discharge summary.  Other discharge summaries we 
looked at did not include similar information. A patient who had been suffering from 
infectious diarrhoea and vomiting was discharged to a nursing home. Information about 
their infection had not been communicated to the nursing home. There was no information 
in the patient’s notes about the decision to discharge in relation to their infection. We 
talked to ward managers about nursing and care information provided to external 
providers.  They said they would provide such information verbally over the phone or when 
the provider came to assess the person.  They told us such information was not 
consistently documented. 

We contacted two nursing homes to where these patients had been transferred. We did 
this to check whether appropriate information, dressings and medications had been sent 
by the hospital. The feedback given to us by these homes included many examples of 
insufficient information and medication to ensure continuity of care. 

Homes had received patients discharged to them of whom they had no previous 
knowledge.  At times, including  the 'whole community black escalation', homes were given 
very little notice.  We were told by the nursing homes that medical discharge summaries 
were usually provided. These contained sufficient information about diagnosis and 
treatment. Information about nursing and care was largely absent. This meant the homes 
did not have sufficient information given by the hospital to ensure safe care and patients’ 
needs were met. For example, one patient arrived with anticoagulant injections, but there 
was no instructions for how this medicine was to be administered. One patient was sent 
out with insufficient insulin, so they ran out within the first day. Another patient had been 
returned to his nursing home with a verbal handover by telephone stating that ‘care 
remained the same’.  This patient had arrived with unlabelled medication that was not 
prescribed for them. The nursing home staff described how they had to telephone the 
hospital ward three times, to ascertain that this medication had been sent with the patient 
in error and belonged to another patient. This person had been admitted for choking.
Their consultant had prescribed the use of a thickening agent for use in drinks to reduce 
chocking risk. No written information about the need to use the thickening agent, or 
supplies of the thickening agent had been sent to the home. 

Nursing home staff and patients’ relatives told us as a result of so insufficient information 
they had to observe people for a couple of days to determine what their needs were and 
then write their care plans. We were told staff from the homes contacted the hospital for 
additional information to care for these patients safely. In one case a discharge summary 
included brief information about a dressing which was needed. It also stated the patient 
"preferred a soft diet". The care home did not know if this was preference, or a medical 
need.

One nursing home told us two families had stated they were “very unhappy” with the 
discharge arrangements. One patient had a ward meeting where the plan for discharge 

Page 26



| Inspection Report | Royal United Hospital Bath NHS Trust | March 2013 www.cqc.org.uk 13

was made and agreed with the family, physiotherapists and other care workers.  This plan 
was then not followed. When they visited their relative they found that there had been no 
discharge information provided by the hospital.  The patient, who was over 80, had to tell 
the nursing home staff what medications were needed and the type of care they required. 
One of their essential medicines had not been sent to the nursing home with their 
discharge medication.   

We looked at the care records file of a patient recently discharged from Coombe ward. 
This person had been tested twice on the AMT with scores of zero and seven respectively. 
Although the second score was lower than eight out of ten, the more detailed cognitive test 
had not been carried out. The patient relatives could not be contacted and they had been 
discharged home to the care of a neighbour who had the key to their home. This meant 
the staff could not be fully assured this person’s discharge to their home was safe. 

Page 27



!"#$%&'()*+$",'&+-)"!",+./0"1$*)'2"3+%&*)/0"4/)5"637"8-9%)"!":/-(5";<=> ???@(A(@+-B@9C =P

Records L()*+$"$''2'2

People's personal records, including medical records, should be accurate and 

kept safe and confidential

Our judgement

85'"&-+V*2'-"?/%"$+)"I'')*$B")5*%"%)/$2/-2@

K'+&0'"?'-'"$+)"&-+)'()'2"F-+I")5'"-*%C%"+F"9$%/F'"+-"*$/&&-+&-*/)'"(/-'"/$2")-'/)I'$)"J."
I'/$%"+F"/((9-/)'"/$2"9&")+"2/)'"-'(+-2%@

T'"5/V'"W92B'2")5/)")5*%"5/%"/"I+2'-/)'"*I&/()"+$"&'+&0'"?5+"9%'")5'"%'-V*('G"/$2"5/V'
)+02")5'"&-+V*2'-")+")/C'"/()*+$@"K0'/%'"%''")5'"UL()*+$U"%'()*+$"?*)5*$")5*%"-'&+-)@"

Reasons for our judgement

T'"(+$('$)-/)'2"/)"0++C*$B"/)"+02'-"&/)*'$)%"-'(+-2%"/)")5*%"*$%&'()*+$@""T'"0++C'2"/)";="
&/)*'$)%U"-'(+-2%")+"%''"*F")5'-'"?/%"%9FF*(*'$)"*$F+-I/)*+$")+"/00+?"%)/FF")+"(/-'"F+-")5'I"
%/F'0.@""#$"(+$$'()*+$"?*)5"I+%)"+F")5'%'"-'(+-2%"?'"%&+C'"?*)5"/"-/$B'"+F"%)/FFG"*$(092*$B"
$9-%*$BG"I'2*(/0"/$2"I/$/B'I'$)"%)/FF@"85*%"?/%")+"(5'(C"?'"5/2"-'V*'?'2"/00"-'0'V/$)"
%+9-('%"+F"*$F+-I/)*+$G"*$(092*$B")5'"'0'()-+$*("-'(+-2"%.%)'I@

85'")-9%)U%"5'/0)5"-'(+-2%"I/$/B'I'$)"&+0*(."%)/)'2"]/$."*$F+-I/)*+$")5/)"*%"%)+-'2G"
&-+29('2"+-"-'(+-2'2"F+-"&/)*'$)%"I9%)"J'"&-*$)'2"/$2"/22'2")+")5'"&/&'-"5'02"-'(+-2@]"
85'"5'/0)5"-'(+-2"(+$)'$)"&+0*(."%)/)'%"]2')/*0%"+F"/$."/%%'%%I'$)%"/$2"-'V*'?%"
9$2'-)/C'$"I9%)"J'"-'(+-2'2")+"&-+V*2'"(0'/-"'V*2'$('"+F"/--/$B'I'$)%"I/2'"F+-"F9)9-'"
/$2"+$B+*$B"(/-']@"D9-*$B")5'"*$%&'()*+$"?'"F+9$2")5'-'"?'-'")5-''"I')5+2%"+F"-'(+-2*$B"
&/)*'$)U%"*$F+-I/)*+$G")5'%'"?'-'")5'"'0'()-+$*("(+I&9)'-"-'(+-2%G"&/&'-"F*0'%"/$2"
*$F+-I/)*+$"-'(+-2'2"+$"?5*)'J+/-2%"*$")5'"?/-2"/-'/@"7)/FF"?'-'"$+)"(0'/-"/J+9)")5'"
/&&-+&-*/)'"-+9)'")+"-'(+-2"*$F+-I/)*+$@"

T'"%/?"%+I'"&/)*'$)%U"-'(+-2%"*$(092'2"%+I'"2')/*0'2"*$F+-I/)*+$"/J+9)")5'*-"(9--'$)"
/%%'%%I'$)%"/$2"-'%&+$%'%")+")-'/)I'$)@"85'%'"*$(092'2"/()*+$%")/C'$"?5'$"/"&/)*'$)"
?/%"/(9)'0."9$?'00@",'(+-2%"%5+?'2"'V*2'$('"+F"/&&-+&-*/)'"(5'(C*$B"+F"&/)*'$)U%"I'2*(/0
(+$2*)*+$%G"%9(5"/%"J0++2")'%)%@"D+(9I'$)/)*+$"%5+?'2"%)/FF"-'B90/-0."-'V*'?'2"/"-/$B'"+F
*$F+-I/)*+$"/J+9)"&/)*'$)%U"-'%&+$%'%")+")-'/)I'$)%@

T'"F+9$2"&/)*'$)%U"-'(+-2%"+I*))'2"+)5'-"*$F+-I/)*+$"*$"-'0/)*+$")+")5'*-"(/-'"/$2")-'/)I'$)@
85*%"(+902"5/V'"&9)"&/)*'$)%"/)"-*%C"+F"9$%/F'"+-"*$/&&-+&-*/)'"(/-'@"85'"0/(C"+F"('-)/*$"
-'(+-2%"/0%+"I'/$)"*)"?/%"$+)"&+%%*J0'")+"I+$*)+-"+-"'V/09/)'"/00"%)/$2/-2%"+F"(/-'"/$2"
)-'/)I'$)@"""

L%%'%%I'$)%"?'-'"(/--*'2"+9)"9%*$B"%)/$2/-2"F+-I%"J9)"-'0'V/$)"*$2*V*29/0"*$F+-I/)*+$"5/2
$+)"J''$"*$(092'2@"S+-"'\/I&0'"+$'"&/)*'$)"?'"I')"?*)5")+02"9%")5'."?'-'"$+)"/J0'")+"0*'"
+$"+$'"+F")5'*-"%*2'%@"85'."2*2"$+)"5/V'"/$."/%%'%%I'$)"/J+9)")5*%"/$2"?'"(+902"$+)"%''"
/"%'()*+$"?5'-'"%9(5"*$F+-I/)*+$"(+902"J'"2+(9I'$)'2"+$")5'")-9%)U%"%)/$2/-2"
2+(9I'$)/)*+$@""

Page 28



!"#$%&'()*+$",'&+-)"!",+./0"1$*)'2"3+%&*)/0"4/)5"637"8-9%)"!":/-(5";<=> ???@(A(@+-B@9C =O

#$")5'"I/W+-*)."+F")5'"-'(+-2%"?'"-'V*'?'2"?'"F+9$2")5'-'"?'-'"$+"&0/$%"+F"(/-'")+"%5+?"
5+?"%)/FF"?'-'")+"I'')"&'+&0'U%"(/-'"/$2")-'/)I'$)"$''2%@""85*%"*$(092'2"(/-'"&0/$%")+"
-'29('"/"&/)*'$)U%"-*%C"+F"F/00%G"&-'%%9-'"90('-/)*+$"/$2"I/0$9)-*)*+$@"T'"%/?"+$'"&/)*'$)U%"
-'(+-2%"2+(9I'$)'2"+((/%*+$%"?5'$")5'."5/2"'\&'-*'$('2"*$(+$)*$'$('@"T'"%/?"
-'A9'%)%"5/2"J''$"I/2'"F+-"9-*$'"%/I&0'%")+"(5'(C"F+-"*$F'()*+$@"85'"&/)*'$)"2*2"$+)"5/V'"
/"(/-'"&0/$"/J+9)"5+?")5'*-"(+$)*$'$('"?/%")+"J'"I/$/B'2G"F+-"'\/I&0'"J."%9&&+-)*$B"
)5'I"*$"B+*$B")+")5'")+*0')"I+-'"-'B90/-0."/$2"+FF'-*$B"/22*)*+$/0"F09*2%@

T'"/%C'2"%)/FF"5+?")5'."&0/$$'2"(/-'@"85'.")+02"9%")5'."9%'2"/"?5*)'"J+/-2")+")-/(C"
/()*+$%"?5*(5"$''2'2")+"J'")/C'$@""85*%"?5*)'J+/-2"?/%"J'5*$2")5'"I/*$"$9-%'%U"%)/)*+$@"#)
%5+?'2")5'"$/I'"+F")5'"&/)*'$)%")+B')5'-"?*)5"0*%)%"/$2"(+0+9-'2"2+)%")+"*$2*(/)'"&-+B-'%%"
)+?/-2%")5'*-"2*%(5/-B'@""7)/FF")+02"9%")5'."5/2"/"5/$2+V'-"/)")5'"J'B*$$*$B"+F"'/(5"%5*F)"
/J+9)"&/)*'$)%U"(/-'"/$2")-'/)I'$)"$''2%G"J9)")5*%"2*2"$+)"F+-I"/"&'-I/$'$)"-'(+-2@"E$"
%+I'"?/-2%G"'/(5"&/)*'$)"5/2"/"?5*)'J+/-2"/J+V'")5'*-"J'2")+"&-+V*2'"%)/FF"?*)5"C'."
*$F+-I/)*+$G"%9(5"/%"/J+9)"%9&&+-)")5'"&/)*'$)"$''2'2"?*)5"I+V*$B@""85'%'"?'-'"?*&'2"
2+?$"/$2"%+"?'-'"$+)"/"&'-I/$'$)"-'(+-2")+"F/(*0*)/)'"'V/09/)*+$"+F"(/-'"/$2")-'/)I'$)@"

T5'-'"&/)*'$)%"5/2"F09*2"J/0/$('"(5/-)%G"*$"I/$."(/%'%")5'%'"?'-'"$+)"(+I&0')'2@""S09*2"
(5/-)%"2*2"$+)"'V*2'$('"&/)*'$)%"?'-'"B*V'$"-'B90/-"2-*$C%G"%+"(5/-)%"(+902"$+)"J'"9%'2")+"
I+$*)+-"+-"'V/09/)'"(/-'"&-+V*2'2@"S+-"'\/I&0'G"+$'"&/)*'$)U%"-'(+-2%"2+(9I'$)'2")5'."
?'-'"(+$F*-I'2"/%"5/V*$B"6+-+V*-9%@"85*%"V*-9%"(/9%'%"V+I*)*$B"/$2"2*/--5+'/"/$2"*$"
+02'-"&'+&0'"&9)%")5'I"/)"-*%C"+F"2'5.2-/)*+$@""85'"&/)*'$)U%"$+)'%"2+(9I'$)'2"]F09*2%"
'$(+9-/B'2]@""85'-'"?/%"$+"'V*2'$('"F-+I")5'"&/)*'$)U%"F09*2"(5/-)"-'(+-2%")5/)")5*%"?/%"
)5'"(/%'@":+%)"+F")5'"F09*2"(5/-)%"?'"%/?"5/2"$+)"J''$")+)/00'2"'V'-.";P"5+9-%G"%+")5'."2*2
$+)"%5+?"*F"/"&'-%+$U%"*$&9)"/$2"+9)&9)"J/0/$('2"+-"?'-'"%/)*%F/()+-."F+-")5'*-"(9--'$)"
$''2%@"T'"/%C'2"%)/FF"/$2"I/$/B'-%"5+?")5'."?+902"C$+?"*F"/"&/)*'$)"5/2"/&&-+&-*/)'"
0'V'0"+F"F09*2"*$)/C'"/$2")5'."?'-'"9$/J0'")+")'00"9%@

,'(+-2%"+F"(5/$B'%"+F"&+%*)*+$"F+-"&'+&0'"/)"-*%C"+F"&-'%%9-'"90('-/)*+$"?'-'"V/-*/J0'@""
7+I'"-'(+-2%G"F+-"'\/I&0'"(+IF+-)"-+9$2"-'(+-2%G"?'-'"F900."(+I&0')'2"+$"%+I'"%5*F)%G"
J9)"$+)"+$"+)5'-%G"?*)5"$+"-'(+-2%"/%")+"?5.")5*%"I*B5)"J'"F+-")5'"&/)*'$)@"T'"%/?"%+I'"
)9-$"(5/-)%"?5'-'"-'(+-2%"?'-'"I/2'"J."%+I'"%5*F)%G"F+-"'\/I&0'"+$"$*B5)"29).G"J9)"$+)"
+)5'-%@"LB/*$")5'-'"?/%"$+"2+(9I'$)'2"-/)*+$/0'"F+-")5*%"*$")5'"&/)*'$)U%"-'(+-2%@"T'"%/?"
*$"+$'"&/)*'$)U%"-'(+-2%")5/)")5'*-")9-$"(5/-)"5/2"J''$"2*%(+$)*$9'2G"J9)"/B/*$")5'-'"?/%"$+
-'/%+$"F+-")5*%"2+(9I'$)'2"*$")5'*-"-'(+-2%@

7+I'"-'(+-2%"2*2"$+)"/B-''@"E$'"&/)*'$)"5/2"/"-'(+-2"*$2*(/)*$B")5'."5/2"/"V'-."0+?"
I'$)/0"(+B$*)*V'")'%)"%(+-'G"J9)"/"2*FF'-'$)"-'(+-2"(+I&0')'2"+$")5'"%/I'"2/)'"?5*(5"
2+(9I'$)'2")5'."5/2"(/&/(*).")+"I/C'"/"('-)/*$"2'(*%*+$@"L"&/)*'$)U%"%)/$2/-2"
/%%'%%I'$)"-'(+-2"(5/$B'2"J')?''$"P"S'J-9/-.";<=>")+"O"S'J-9/-.";<=>G"F-+I"%)/)*$B"
)5'-'"I*B5)"J'"*%%9'%"-'0/)*$B")+")5'*-"2*%(5/-B'G")+"%)/)*$B")5'-'"?'-'"$+"%9(5"*%%9'%@""
85'-'"?'-'"$+"$+)'%"*$")5'*-"+)5'-"-'(+-2%")+"%5+?"?5/)"F/()+-%"5/2"+((9--'2")+"/FF'()")5*%"
(5/$B'"*$")5'*-"(+$2*)*+$@

Page 29



This section is primarily information for the provider

!"#$%&'()*+$",'&+-)"!",+./0"1$*)'2"3+%&*)/0"4/)5"637"8-9%)"!":/-(5";<=> ???@(A(@+-B@9C =R

Action we have told the provider to take

Compliance actions

85'")/J0'"J'0+?"%5+?%")5'"'%%'$)*/0"%)/$2/-2%"+F"A9/0*)."/$2"%/F').")5/)"were not being 

met@"85'"&-+V*2'-"I9%)"%'$2"HaH"/"-'&+-)")5/)"%/.%"?5/)"/()*+$")5'."/-'"B+*$B")+")/C'")+"
I'')")5'%'"'%%'$)*/0"%)/$2/-2%@

,'B90/)'2"/()*V*). ,'B90/)*+$

8-'/)I'$)"+F"
2*%'/%'G"2*%+-2'-"+-"
*$W9-.

Regulation 17 HSCA 2008 (Regulated Activities) Regulations

2010

Respecting and involving people who use services

How the regulation was not being met:

#$&/)*'$)%"/((+II+2/)'2"+$")5'"2/."%9-B'-."9$*)"/)")5'")*I'"+F"
)5'"*$%&'()*+$"V*%*)"?'-'"$+)"5/V*$B")5'*-"&-*V/(."/$2"2*B$*)."
I/*$)/*$'2@

,'B90/)*+$"=^"Z=["Z/[@
"

,'B90/)'2"/()*V*). ,'B90/)*+$

8-'/)I'$)"+F"
2*%'/%'G"2*%+-2'-"+-"
*$W9-.

Regulation 9 HSCA 2008 (Regulated Activities) Regulations 

2010

Care and welfare of people who use services

How the regulation was not being met:

K/)*'$)%"J'*$B"(/-'2"F+-"/$2")-'/)'2"+$")5'"2/."%9-B'-."9$*)"
ZD71["?'-'"$+)"5/V*$B")5'*-"(/-'"$''2%"/2'A9/)'0."/%%'%%'2G"
&0/$$'2"/$2"2'0*V'-'2@""85'"(/-'"/$2")-'/)I'$)"/--/$B'I'$)%"
+$")5'"9$*)"?'-'"$+)"+-B/$*%'2"/-+9$2")5'"-/$B'"+F"(/-'"$''2%"
+F")5'"&/)*'$)%"/((+II+2/)'2")5'-'@

,'B90/)*+$"Y"Z=["Z/["ZJ"["Z*["Z**[@"

,'B90/)'2"/()*V*). ,'B90/)*+$

Page 30



This section is primarily information for the provider

!"#$%&'()*+$",'&+-)"!",+./0"1$*)'2"3+%&*)/0"4/)5"637"8-9%)"!":/-(5";<=> ???@(A(@+-B@9C =^

8-'/)I'$)"+F"
2*%'/%'G"2*%+-2'-"+-"
*$W9-.

Regulation 24 HSCA 2008 (Regulated Activities) Regulations

2010

Cooperating with other providers

How the regulation was not being met:

K/)*'$)%"2*%(5/-B'2"F-+I")5'"5+%&*)/0"(/$$+)"J'"(+$F*2'$)")5/)"
)5'"5+%&*)/0"?*00"(+II9$*(/)'"$'('%%/-."*$F+-I/)*+$"/J+9)")5'*-"
(/-'"/$2")-'/)I'$)")+"'$%9-'"(+$)*$9*)."+F"(/-'"/$2"I*$*I*%'"
-*%C%"/-*%*$B"F-+I")5'")-/$%F'-"+F"(/-'@

,'B90/)*+$";P"ZJ["Z*[@"

,'B90/)'2"/()*V*). ,'B90/)*+$

8-'/)I'$)"+F"
2*%'/%'G"2*%+-2'-"+-"
*$W9-.

Regulation 20 HSCA 2008 (Regulated Activities) Regulations

2010

Records

How the regulation was not being met:

K'+&0'"?'-'"$+)"&-+)'()'2"F-+I")5'"-*%C%"+F"9$%/F'"+-"
*$/&&-+&-*/)'"(/-'"/$2")-'/)I'$)"J."I'/$%"+F"/((9-/)'"/$2"9&"
)+"2/)'"-'(+-2%@

,'B90/)*+$";<"Z=["Z/[@"

85*%"-'&+-)"*%"-'A9'%)'2"9$2'-"-'B90/)*+$"=<Z>["+F")5'"3'/0)5"/$2"7+(*/0"H/-'"L()";<<Q"
Z,'B90/)'2"L()*V*)*'%[",'B90/)*+$%";<=<@

85'"&-+V*2'-U%"-'&+-)"%5+902"J'"%'$)")+"9%"J.";;":/-(5";<=>@"

HaH"%5+902"J'"*$F+-I'2"?5'$"(+I&0*/$('"/()*+$%"/-'"(+I&0')'@

T'"?*00"(5'(C")+"I/C'"%9-'")5/)"/()*+$"5/%"J''$")/C'$")+"I'')")5'"%)/$2/-2%"/$2"?*00"
-'&+-)"+$"+9-"W92B'I'$)%@"

Page 31



!"#$%&'()*+$",'&+-)"!",+./0"1$*)'2"3+%&*)/0"4/)5"637"8-9%)"!":/-(5";<=> ???@(A(@+-B@9C =Q

About CQC inspections

T'"/-'")5'"-'B90/)+-"+F"5'/0)5"/$2"%+(*/0"(/-'"*$"X$B0/$2@

L00"&-+V*2'-%"+F"-'B90/)'2"5'/0)5"/$2"%+(*/0"(/-'"%'-V*('%"5/V'"/"0'B/0"-'%&+$%*J*0*).")+"
I/C'"%9-'")5'."/-'"I'')*$B"'%%'$)*/0"%)/$2/-2%"+F"A9/0*)."/$2"%/F').@"85'%'"/-'")5'"
%)/$2/-2%"'V'-.+$'"%5+902"J'"/J0'")+"'\&'()"?5'$")5'."-'('*V'"(/-'@

85'"'%%'$)*/0"%)/$2/-2%"/-'"2'%(-*J'2"*$")5'"3'/0)5"/$2"7+(*/0"H/-'"L()";<<Q"Z,'B90/)'2"
L()*V*)*'%[",'B90/)*+$%";<=<"/$2")5'"H/-'"a9/0*)."H+II*%%*+$"Z,'B*%)-/)*+$[",'B90/)*+$%"
;<<Y@"T'"-'B90/)'"/B/*$%)")5'%'"%)/$2/-2%G"?5*(5"?'"%+I')*I'%"2'%(-*J'"/%"]B+V'-$I'$)
%)/$2/-2%]@

T'"(/--."+9)"9$/$$+9$('2"*$%&'()*+$%"+F"/00"(/-'"5+I'%G"/(9)'"5+%&*)/0%"/$2"2+I*(*0*/-."
(/-'"%'-V*('%"*$"X$B0/$2"/)"0'/%)"+$('"/".'/-")+"W92B'"?5')5'-"+-"$+)")5'"'%%'$)*/0"
%)/$2/-2%"/-'"J'*$B"I')@"T'"(/--."+9)"*$%&'()*+$%"+F"2'$)*%)%"/$2"+)5'-"%'-V*('%"/)"0'/%)"
+$('"'V'-.")?+".'/-%@"L00"+F"+9-"*$%&'()*+$%"/-'"9$/$$+9$('2"9$0'%%")5'-'"*%"/"B++2"
-'/%+$")+"0')")5'"&-+V*2'-"C$+?"?'"/-'"(+I*$B@

85'-'"/-'"=R"'%%'$)*/0"%)/$2/-2%")5/)"-'0/)'"I+%)"2*-'()0.")+")5'"A9/0*)."/$2"%/F')."+F"(/-'"
/$2")5'%'"/-'"B-+9&'2"*$)+"F*V'"C'."/-'/%@"T5'$"?'"*$%&'()"?'"(+902"(5'(C"/00"+-"&/-)"+F"
/$."+F")5'"=R"%)/$2/-2%"/)"/$.")*I'"2'&'$2*$B"+$")5'"*$2*V*29/0"(*-(9I%)/$('%"+F")5'"
%'-V*('@"4'(/9%'"+F")5*%"?'"+F)'$"(5'(C"2*FF'-'$)"%)/$2/-2%"/)"2*FF'-'$)")*I'%"J9)"?'"
/0?/.%"*$%&'()"/)"0'/%)"+$'"%)/$2/-2"F-+I"'/(5"+F")5'"F*V'"C'."/-'/%"'V'-.".'/-@"T'"I/."
(5'(C"F'?'-"C'."/-'/%"*$")5'"(/%'"+F"2'$)*%)%"/$2"%+I'"+)5'-"%'-V*('%@

T5'$"?'"*$%&'()G"?'"/0?/.%"V*%*)"/$2"?'"2+")5*$B%"0*C'"+J%'-V'"5+?"&'+&0'"/-'"(/-'2"F+-G"
/$2"?'")/0C")+"&'+&0'"?5+"9%'")5'"%'-V*('G")+")5'*-"(/-'-%"/$2")+"%)/FF@"T'"/0%+"-'V*'?"
*$F+-I/)*+$"?'"5/V'"B/)5'-'2"/J+9)")5'"&-+V*2'-G"(5'(C")5'"%'-V*('U%"-'(+-2%"/$2"(5'(C"
?5')5'-")5'"-*B5)"%.%)'I%"/$2"&-+('%%'%"/-'"*$"&0/('@

T'"F+(9%"+$"?5')5'-"+-"$+)")5'"&-+V*2'-"*%"I'')*$B")5'"%)/$2/-2%"/$2"?'"/-'"B9*2'2"J."
?5')5'-"&'+&0'"/-'"'\&'-*'$(*$B")5'"+9)(+I'%")5'."%5+902"J'"/J0'")+"'\&'()"?5'$")5'"
%)/$2/-2%"/-'"J'*$B"I')@"4."+9)(+I'%"?'"I'/$")5'"*I&/()"(/-'"5/%"+$")5'"5'/0)5G"%/F')."
/$2"?'0F/-'"+F"&'+&0'"?5+"9%'")5'"%'-V*('G"/$2")5'"'\&'-*'$('")5'."5/V'"?5*0%)"-'('*V*$B"
*)@

E9-"*$%&'()+-%"W92B'"*F"/$."/()*+$"*%"-'A9*-'2"J.")5'"&-+V*2'-"+F")5'"%'-V*('")+"*I&-+V'")5'"
%)/$2/-2"+F"(/-'"J'*$B"&-+V*2'2@"T5'-'"&-+V*2'-%"/-'"$+$`(+I&0*/$)"?*)5")5'"-'B90/)*+$%G"
?'")/C'"'$F+-('I'$)"/()*+$"/B/*$%)")5'I@"#F"?'"-'A9*-'"/"%'-V*('")+")/C'"/()*+$G"+-"*F"?'"
)/C'"'$F+-('I'$)"/()*+$G"?'"-'`*$%&'()"*)"J'F+-'"*)%"$'\)"-+9)*$'"*$%&'()*+$"?/%"29'@"85*%"
(+902"I'/$"?'"-'`*$%&'()"/"%'-V*('"%'V'-/0")*I'%"*$"+$'".'/-@"T'"/0%+"I*B5)"2'(*2'")+"-'`
*$%&'()"/"%'-V*('"*F"$'?"(+$('-$%"'I'-B'"/J+9)"*)"J'F+-'")5'"$'\)"-+9)*$'"*$%&'()*+$@

#$"J')?''$"*$%&'()*+$%"?'"(+$)*$9/00."I+$*)+-"*$F+-I/)*+$"?'"5/V'"/J+9)"&-+V*2'-%@"85'"
*$F+-I/)*+$"(+I'%"F-+I")5'"&9J0*(G")5'"&-+V*2'-G"+)5'-"+-B/$*%/)*+$%G"/$2"F-+I"(/-'"
?+-C'-%@

b+9"(/$")'00"9%"/J+9)".+9-"'\&'-*'$('"+F")5*%"&-+V*2'-"+$"+9-"?'J%*)'@

Page 32



!"#$%&'()*+$",'&+-)"!",+./0"1$*)'2"3+%&*)/0"4/)5"637"8-9%)"!":/-(5";<=> ???@(A(@+-B@9C =Y

How we define our judgements

85'"F+00+?*$B"&/B'%"%5+?"+9-"F*$2*$B%"/$2"-'B90/)+-."W92B'I'$)"F+-"'/(5"'%%'$)*/0"
%)/$2/-2"+-"&/-)"+F")5'"%)/$2/-2")5/)"?'"*$%&'()'2@"E9-"W92B'I'$)%"/-'"J/%'2"+$")5'"
+$B+*$B"-'V*'?"/$2"/$/0.%*%"+F")5'"*$F+-I/)*+$"B/)5'-'2"J."HaH"/J+9)")5*%"&-+V*2'-"/$2"
)5'"'V*2'$('"(+00'()'2"29-*$B")5*%"*$%&'()*+$@

T'"-'/(5"+$'"+F")5'"F+00+?*$B"W92B'I'$)%"F+-"'/(5"'%%'$)*/0"%)/$2/-2"*$%&'()'2@

" Met this standard 85*%"I'/$%")5/)")5'"%)/$2/-2"?/%"J'*$B"I')"*$")5/)")5'"
&-+V*2'-"?/%"(+I&0*/$)"?*)5")5'"-'B90/)*+$@"#F"?'"F*$2")5/)"
%)/$2/-2%"?'-'"I')G"?'")/C'"$+"-'B90/)+-."/()*+$"J9)"?'"
I/."I/C'"(+II'$)%")5/)"I/."J'"9%'F90")+")5'"&-+V*2'-"/$2"
)+")5'"&9J0*("/J+9)"I*$+-"*I&-+V'I'$)%")5/)"(+902"J'"I/2'@

" Action needed 85*%"I'/$%")5/)")5'"%)/$2/-2"?/%"$+)"J'*$B"I')"*$")5/)")5'"
&-+V*2'-"?/%"$+$`(+I&0*/$)"?*)5")5'"-'B90/)*+$@"
T'"I/."5/V'"%')"/"(+I&0*/$('"/()*+$"-'A9*-*$B")5'"&-+V*2'-"
)+"&-+29('"/"-'&+-)"%'))*$B"+9)"5+?"/$2"J."?5'$"(5/$B'%"
?*00"J'"I/2'")+"I/C'"%9-'")5'."(+I&0."?*)5")5'"%)/$2/-2@"
T'"I+$*)+-")5'"*I&0'I'$)/)*+$"+F"/()*+$"&0/$%"*$")5'%'"
-'&+-)%"/$2G"*F"$'('%%/-.G")/C'"F9-)5'-"/()*+$@
T'"I/."5/V'"*2'$)*F*'2"/"J-'/(5"+F"/"-'B90/)*+$"?5*(5"*%"
I+-'"%'-*+9%G"/$2"?'"?*00"I/C'"%9-'"/()*+$"*%")/C'$@"T'"?*00"
-'&+-)"+$")5*%"?5'$"*)"*%"(+I&0')'@

" Enforcement

action taken

#F")5'"J-'/(5"+F")5'"-'B90/)*+$"?/%"I+-'"%'-*+9%G"+-")5'-'"
5/V'"J''$"%'V'-/0"+-"(+$)*$9/0"J-'/(5'%G"?'"5/V'"/"-/$B'"+F
/()*+$%"?'")/C'"9%*$B")5'"(-*I*$/0"/$2c+-"(*V*0"&-+('29-'%"*$"
)5'"3'/0)5"/$2"7+(*/0"H/-'"L()";<<Q"/$2"-'0'V/$)"
-'B90/)*+$%@"85'%'"'$F+-('I'$)"&+?'-%"*$(092'"*%%9*$B"/"
?/-$*$B"$+)*('d"-'%)-*()*$B"+-"%9%&'$2*$B")5'"%'-V*('%"/"
&-+V*2'-"(/$"+FF'-G"+-")5'"$9IJ'-"+F"&'+&0'"*)"(/$"(/-'"F+-d"
*%%9*$B"F*$'%"/$2"F+-I/0"(/9)*+$%d"*$"'\)-'I'"(/%'%G"
(/$('00*$B"/"&-+V*2'-"+-"I/$/B'-%"-'B*%)-/)*+$"+-"&-+%'(9)*$B
/"I/$/B'-"+-"&-+V*2'-@"85'%'"'$F+-('I'$)"&+?'-%"/-'"%')"
+9)"*$"0/?"/$2"I'/$")5/)"?'"(/$")/C'"%?*F)G")/-B')'2"/()*+$"
?5'-'"%'-V*('%"/-'"F/*0*$B"&'+&0'@

Page 33



!"#$%&'()*+$",'&+-)"!",+./0"1$*)'2"3+%&*)/0"4/)5"637"8-9%)"!":/-(5";<=> ???@(A(@+-B@9C""""""";<

How we define our judgements (continued)

T5'-'"?'"F*$2"$+$`(+I&0*/$('"?*)5"/"-'B90/)*+$"Z+-"&/-)"+F"/"-'B90/)*+$[G"?'"%)/)'"?5*(5"
&/-)"+F")5'"-'B90/)*+$"5/%"J''$"J-'/(5'2@"T'"I/C'"/"W92B'I'$)"/J+9)")5'"0'V'0"+F"*I&/()"
+$"&'+&0'"?5+"9%'")5'"%'-V*('"Z/$2"+)5'-%G"*F"/&&-+&-*/)'")+")5'"-'B90/)*+$["F-+I")5'"
J-'/(5@"85*%"(+902"J'"/"I*$+-G"I+2'-/)'"+-"I/W+-"*I&/()@

Minor impact ! &'+&0'"?5+"9%'")5'"%'-V*('"'\&'-*'$('2"&++-"(/-'")5/)"5/2"/$"*I&/()"+$
)5'*-"5'/0)5G"%/F')."+-"?'0F/-'"+-")5'-'"?/%"/"-*%C"+F")5*%"5/&&'$*$B@"85'"*I&/()"?/%"$+)"
%*B$*F*(/$)"/$2")5'"I/))'-"(+902"J'"I/$/B'2"+-"-'%+0V'2"A9*(C0.@

Moderate impact ! &'+&0'"?5+"9%'")5'"%'-V*('"'\&'-*'$('2"&++-"(/-'")5/)"5/2"/"
%*B$*F*(/$)"'FF'()"+$")5'*-"5'/0)5G"%/F')."+-"?'0F/-'"+-")5'-'"?/%"/"-*%C"+F")5*%"5/&&'$*$B@"
85'"I/))'-"I/."$''2")+"J'"-'%+0V'2"A9*(C0.@

Major impact ! &'+&0'"?5+"9%'")5'"%'-V*('"'\&'-*'$('2"&++-"(/-'")5/)"5/2"/"%'-*+9%"
(9--'$)"+-"0+$B")'-I"*I&/()"+$")5'*-"5'/0)5G"%/F')."/$2"?'0F/-'G"+-")5'-'"?/%"/"-*%C"+F")5*%"
5/&&'$*$B@"85'"I/))'-"$''2%")+"J'"-'%+0V'2"A9*(C0.

T'"2'(*2'")5'"I+%)"/&&-+&-*/)'"/()*+$")+")/C'")+"'$%9-'")5/)")5'"$'('%%/-."(5/$B'%"/-'"
I/2'@"T'"/0?/.%"F+00+?"9&")+"(5'(C"?5')5'-"/()*+$"5/%"J''$")/C'$")+"I'')")5'"
%)/$2/-2%@

Page 34



!"#$%&'()*+$",'&+-)"!",+./0"1$*)'2"3+%&*)/0"4/)5"637"8-9%)"!":/-(5";<=> ???@(A(@+-B@9C""""""";=

Glossary of terms we use in this report

Essential standard

85'"'%%'$)*/0"%)/$2/-2%"+F"A9/0*)."/$2"%/F')."/-'"2'%(-*J'2"*$"+9-"Guidance about 
compliance: Essential standards of quality and safety@"85'."(+$%*%)"+F"/"%*B$*F*(/$)"$9IJ'-
+F")5'"3'/0)5"/$2"7+(*/0"H/-'"L()";<<Q"Z,'B90/)'2"L()*V*)*'%[",'B90/)*+$%";<=<"/$2")5'"
H/-'"a9/0*)."H+II*%%*+$"Z,'B*%)-/)*+$[",'B90/)*+$%";<<Y@"85'%'"-'B90/)*+$%"2'%(-*J'")5'
'%%'$)*/0"%)/$2/-2%"+F"A9/0*)."/$2"%/F').")5/)"&'+&0'"?5+"9%'"5'/0)5"/$2"/290)"%+(*/0"(/-'"
%'-V*('%"5/V'"/"-*B5)")+"'\&'()@"L"F900"0*%)"+F")5'"%)/$2/-2%"(/$"J'"F+9$2"?*)5*$")5'"
Guidance about compliance@"85'"=R"'%%'$)*/0"%)/$2/-2%"/-'N

,'%&'()*$B"/$2"*$V+0V*$B"&'+&0'"?5+"9%'"%'-V*('%"`"E9)(+I'"="Z,'B90/)*+$"=^[

H+$%'$)")+"(/-'"/$2")-'/)I'$)"`"E9)(+I'";"Z,'B90/)*+$"=Q[

H/-'"/$2"?'0F/-'"+F"&'+&0'"?5+"9%'"%'-V*('%"`"E9)(+I'"P"Z,'B90/)*+$"Y[

:'')*$B"69)-*)*+$/0"6''2%"`"E9)(+I'"O"Z,'B90/)*+$"=P[

H++&'-/)*$B"?*)5"+)5'-"&-+V*2'-%"`"E9)(+I'"R"Z,'B90/)*+$";P[

7/F'B9/-2*$B"&'+&0'"?5+"9%'"%'-V*('%"F-+I"/J9%'"`"E9)(+I'"^"Z,'B90/)*+$"==[

H0'/$0*$'%%"/$2"*$F'()*+$"(+$)-+0"`"E9)(+I'"Q"Z,'B90/)*+$"=;[

:/$/B'I'$)"+F"I'2*(*$'%"`"E9)(+I'"Y"Z,'B90/)*+$"=>[

7/F')."/$2"%9*)/J*0*)."+F"&-'I*%'%"`"E9)(+I'"=<"Z,'B90/)*+$"=O[

7/F').G"/V/*0/J*0*)."/$2"%9*)/J*0*)."+F"'A9*&I'$)"`"E9)(+I'"=="Z,'B90/)*+$"=R[

,'A9*-'I'$)%"-'0/)*$B")+"?+-C'-%"`"E9)(+I'"=;"Z,'B90/)*+$";=[

7)/FF*$B"`"E9)(+I'"=>"Z,'B90/)*+$";;[

79&&+-)*$B"7)/FF"`"E9)(+I'"=P"Z,'B90/)*+$";>[

L%%'%%*$B"/$2"I+$*)+-*$B")5'"A9/0*)."+F"%'-V*('"&-+V*%*+$"`"E9)(+I'"=R"Z,'B90/)*+$"=<[

H+I&0/*$)%"`"E9)(+I'"=^"Z,'B90/)*+$"=Y[

,'(+-2%"`"E9)(+I'";="Z,'B90/)*+$";<[

Regulated activity

85'%'"/-'"&-'%(-*J'2"/()*V*)*'%"-'0/)'2")+"(/-'"/$2")-'/)I'$)")5/)"-'A9*-'"-'B*%)-/)*+$"?*)5"
HaH@"85'%'"/-'"%')"+9)"*$"0'B*%0/)*+$G"/$2"-'F0'()")5'"%'-V*('%"&-+V*2'2@

Page 35



!"#$%&'()*+$",'&+-)"!",+./0"1$*)'2"3+%&*)/0"4/)5"637"8-9%)"!":/-(5";<=> ???@(A(@+-B@9C ;;

Glossary of terms we use in this report (continued)

(Registered) Provider

85'-'"/-'"%'V'-/0"0'B/0")'-I%"-'0/)*$B")+")5'"&-+V*2'-%"+F"%'-V*('%@"85'%'"*$(092'"
-'B*%)'-'2"&'-%+$G"%'-V*('"&-+V*2'-"/$2"-'B*%)'-'2"I/$/B'-@"85'")'-I"U&-+V*2'-U"I'/$%"
/$.+$'"?*)5"/"0'B/0"-'%&+$%*J*0*)."F+-"'$%9-*$B")5/)")5'"-'A9*-'I'$)%"+F")5'"0/?"/-'"(/--*'2"
+9)@"E$"+9-"?'J%*)'"?'"+F)'$"-'F'-")+"&-+V*2'-%"/%"/"U%'-V*('U@

Regulations

T'"-'B90/)'"/B/*$%)")5'"3'/0)5"/$2"7+(*/0"H/-'"L()";<<Q"Z,'B90/)'2"L()*V*)*'%["
,'B90/)*+$%";<=<"/$2")5'"H/-'"a9/0*)."H+II*%%*+$"Z,'B*%)-/)*+$[",'B90/)*+$%";<<Y@

Responsive inspection

85*%"*%"(/--*'2"+9)"/)"/$.")*I'"*$"-'0/)*+$")+"*2'$)*F*'2"(+$('-$%@

Routine inspection

85*%"*%"&0/$$'2"/$2"(+902"+((9-"/)"/$.")*I'@"T'"%+I')*I'%"2'%(-*J'")5*%"/%"/"%(5'290'2"
*$%&'()*+$@

Themed inspection

85*%"*%")/-B')'2")+"0++C"/)"%&'(*F*("%)/$2/-2%G"%'()+-%"+-").&'%"+F"(/-'@

Page 36



!"#$%&'()*+$",'&+-)"!",+./0"1$*)'2"3+%&*)/0"4/)5"637"8-9%)"!":/-(5";<=> ???@(A(@+-B@9C ;>

Contact us

K5+$'N <><<<"R=R=R=

XI/*0N '$A9*-*'%e(A(@+-B@9C

T-*)'")+"9%"
/)N

H/-'"a9/0*)."H+II*%%*+$
H*).B/)'
M/00+?B/)'
6'?(/%)0'"9&+$"8.$'
6X="PKL

T'J%*)'N ???@(A(@+-B@9C

H+&.-*B5)"H+&.-*B5)"f"Z;<==["H/-'"a9/0*)."H+II*%%*+$"ZHaH[@"85*%"&9J0*(/)*+$"I/."
J'"-'&-+29('2"*$"?5+0'"+-"*$"&/-)G"F-''"+F"(5/-B'G"*$"/$."F+-I/)"+-"I'2*9I"&-+V*2'2"
)5/)"*)"*%"$+)"9%'2"F+-"(+II'-(*/0"B/*$@"85*%"(+$%'$)"*%"%9JW'()")+")5'"I/)'-*/0"J'*$B"
-'&-+29('2"/((9-/)'0."/$2"+$"&-+V*%+")5/)"*)"*%"$+)"9%'2"*$"/"2'-+B/)+-."I/$$'-"+-"
I*%0'/2*$B"(+$)'\)@"85'"I/)'-*/0"%5+902"J'"/(C$+?0'2B'2"/%"HaH"(+&.-*B5)G"?*)5")5'
)*)0'"/$2"2/)'"+F"&9J0*(/)*+$"+F")5'"2+(9I'$)"%&'(*F*'2@

Page 37



Page 38

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Appendix C: Action Plan from the CQC unannounced inspection of the RUH (February 2013) 
 

Page 1 of 5 
Author: Rob Eliot, Lead for Quality Assurance 
Version 2 
Date: 15 March 2013 

 

 

Key findings Actions required (specify “None”, if none 
required)  

Action by 
date 

Person responsible  
(Name and grade) 

Status Comments/action status 
(Provide examples of action in 
progress, changes in practices etc) 

Inpatients accommodated on the day 
surgery unit at the time of the 
inspection visit were not having their 
privacy and dignity maintained. 
(Outcome 1 – Minor impact) 
 
The CQC notes, “the day surgery unit was 
being used as a facility to care for 
inpatients who would normally be 
accommodated elsewhere in the hospital. 
The environment and the care 
arrangements on this unit were not suited 
to ensuring inpatients privacy, dignity, 
health and welfare needs were met.” 

Review DSU admission criteria. 
 
 
Develop DSU admission criteria for red / black 
escalation status. 
 
Review of DSU patients by duty matron / site 
manager is documented daily. 
 
 
Site management team to hold a log of patient 
safety issues raised and actions taken.  Develop 
process for addressing where patient safety 
concerns have been raised but not resolved. 
 
DSU staff / clinical site team / on call managers / 
on call directors to be made clear of DSU 
function when trust is in red / black escalation 
(circulate DSU admission criteria and process 
for addressing patient safety concerns). 
 
Investigate option of providing an additional 
shower. 
 
 
Air flow for DSU has been reviewed and found to 
be fully functional. 

March 2013 
 
 
April 2013 
 
 
March 2013 
 
 
 
April 2013 
 
 
 
 
April 2013 
 
 
 
 
 
April 2013 
 
 
 
March 2013 
 

Suzanne Wills, 
Divisional Manager 
 
Suzanne Wills 
 
 
Sharon Bonson, 
Assistant Director of 
Nursing, Surgery 
 
Janet Wright, Clinical 
Site Manager 
 
 
 
Suzanne Wills 
 
 
 
 
 
Julia Papps, Matron 
Howard Jones, 
Director of Facilities 
 
Howard Jones 
 

 Action complete 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Action complete 

P
a
g
e
 3

9



 
 

Appendix C: Action Plan from the CQC unannounced inspection of the RUH (February 2013) 
 

Page 2 of 5 
Author: Rob Eliot, Lead for Quality Assurance 
Version 2 
Date: 15 March 2013 

 

Key findings Actions required (specify “None”, if none 

required)  
Action by 
date 

Person responsible  
(Name and grade) 

Status Comments/action status 
(Provide examples of action in 
progress, changes in practices etc) 

Patients being cared for and treated on 
the day surgery unit (DSU) were not 
having their care needs adequately 
assessed, planned and delivered. The 
care and treatment arrangements on the 
unit were not organised around the 
range of care needs of the patients 
accommodated there. 
(Outcome 4 – Moderate impact) 
 
Concerns raised in DSU included: 

· No comfort rounds carried out 

· Risks assessments for pressure 
ulcers not completed in line with 
NICE guidance 

· No access to turn charts 

· Care plans for prevention of 
pressure ulceration not in place 

· Risk assessments / care plan for 
falls not completed 

· Mobility assessment and 
communication assessment not 
completed 

 
Concerns raised in OPU included: 

· Patients not able to understand 
CQC questions were not having 
all their care needs met 

· No other mental cognitive tests 
had been completed for patients 
with abbreviated mental test 
(AMT) scores of less than eight. 
This meant no further assessment 
or care planning had been 
developed for the risks associated 
with their confusion. 

Review availability of documentation within DSU. 
 
Nursing documentation to be held in folders at 
the end of the patient’s bed to allow easy access 
for staff (yellow clip boards to indicate if comfort 
rounds required) 
 
Appoint ward clerk for DSU who will be 
responsible for maintaining a supply of relevant 
documentation. 
 
Develop an overview of documentation that 
should be completed for inpatients – core and 
care need specific, in line with record keeping 
standards. 
 
DSU staff to be trained on inpatient millennium 
record keeping and patient documentation. 
 
 
 
Shift coordinator to ensure that all patients have 
had appropriate nursing documentation 
commenced, including initial and on-going risk 
assessments. 
 
Develop a guideline for AMT (to include 
requirements for further assessment and care 
planning) 

March 2013 
 
 
March 2013 
 
 
 
April 2013 
 
 
 
April 2013 
 
 
 
 
April 2013 
 
 
 
 
April 2013 
 
 
 
 
May 2013 
 
 

Julia Papps 
 
 
Julia Papps 
 
 
 
Sarah Fletcher, DSU 
Senior Sister  
 
 
Anne Plaskitt 
 
 
 
 
Jessica Flower, 
Millennium Change 
Lead 
Anne Plaskitt 
 
Sarah Fletcher 
 
 
 
 
Dr Chris Dyer, 
Consultant 
Geriatrician 

 Completed. DSU have been provided 
with relevant documentation for 
inpatients.  
 
 
 
 
 
Interviews to be planned for April 
2013.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Training log to be maintained. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Sue Leathers (Matron) to discuss with 
Chris Dyer. 

P
a

g
e
 4

0



 
 

Appendix C: Action Plan from the CQC unannounced inspection of the RUH (February 2013) 
 

Page 3 of 5 
Author: Rob Eliot, Lead for Quality Assurance 
Version 2 
Date: 15 March 2013 

 

Key findings Actions required (specify “None”, if none 

required)  
Action by 
date 

Person responsible  
(Name and grade) 

Status Comments/action status 
(Provide examples of action in 
progress, changes in practices etc) 

Patients discharged from the hospital 
cannot be confident that the hospital 
will communicate necessary 
information about their care and 
treatment to ensure continuity of care 
and minimise risks arising from the 
transfer of care. 
(Outcome 6 – Moderate impact) 
 
Concerns identified included: 

· Nursing and care information to 
external providers was not 
consistently documented in the 
discharge planning form (e.g. 
continence status, support with 
medications) 

· Essential medications not always 
sent to the nursing home 

· Unlabelled medicines, or 
medicines not prescribed for the 
patient supplied inappropriately 

Roll out the use of the transfer of care power 
form on Millennium to all wards 
 
Nursing documentation standards for discharge 
will be promoted on each ward through: 

· Poster of discharge documentation 
standards 

· Awareness sessions with each ward 
and sisters meetings 

· Prompt cards with step by step 
information for completion of the 
transfer of care form on Millennium 

 
Audit of completion of discharge checklist – to 
include checking on what information was given 
to the patient and external providers. This will be 
carried out by ward staff (5 records per week).  
 
Audit on the transfer of care form to be carried 
out monthly (data can be exported from 
Millennium). 
 
Sections 10 & 11 of Discharge Medicines Policy 
to be promoted on each ward through: 

· Poster and prompt cards for key 
actions 

· Awareness sessions with each ward 
and sisters meetings 

 
Audit of Discharge Medicines Policy standards 
 
Green Review meetings with external providers 
are held 3 times a week. Ensure that issues 
around discharges are a standing agenda item 
and a log kept of identified concerns to raise at 
site / bed management meetings. 

March 2013 
 
 
April 2013 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
May 2013 
 
 
 
 
 
May 2013 
 
 
 
May 2013 
 
 
 
 
 
May 2013 
 
April 2013 

Anne Plaskitt 
 
 
Anne Plaskitt, Senior 
Nurse, Quality 
Improvement 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Anne Plaskitt 
Rob Eliot, Lead for 
Quality Assurance 
Ward Sisters 
 
 
Business Intelligence 
Unit 
 
 
Regina Brophy, Chief 
Pharmacist 
 
 
 
 
Rob Eliot 
 
Clare O’Farrell, 
Divisional Manager 

 Refer to Transfer of care roll out plan. 
First awareness sessions are to be 
held week commencing 11 March 
2013. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Add audit of the discharge checklist to 
the monthly global trigger tool harm 
review (from April 2013, in addition to 
the weekly ward audits). 
 
The results from completed audits will 
be reviewed at Quality Board. 
 
 
 
Only in exceptional circumstances 
should patients be discharged home 
without their medicines, e.g.OOH 
discharge of local patient who can 
collect medicines the following 
morning. 

P
a
g
e
 4

1



 
 

Appendix C: Action Plan from the CQC unannounced inspection of the RUH (February 2013) 
 

Page 4 of 5 
Author: Rob Eliot, Lead for Quality Assurance 
Version 2 
Date: 15 March 2013 

 

Key findings Actions required (specify “None”, if none 

required)  
Action by 
date 

Person responsible  
(Name and grade) 

Status Comments/action status 
(Provide examples of action in 
progress, changes in practices etc) 

People were not protected from the 
risks of unsafe or inappropriate care 
and treatment by means of accurate and 
up to date records. 
(Outcome 21 – Moderate impact) 
 
Health Records Management Policy states, 
“any information that is stored, produced or 
recorded for patients must be printed and 
added to the paper record”.  
 
Concerns identified included record 
keeping not being consistently completed 
for: 

· Patients’ fluid intake and output / 
fluid balance charts 

· Discharge planning & checklist 

· Falls care plan 

· Pressure Ulceration prevention 
and turn charts 

· Malnutrition 

· Continence 

· Comfort rounds (completed on 
some shifts but not others) 

Revise Health Records Management Policy to 
more accurately reflect where documentation 
should be recorded / filed. Whiteboards are used 
as a tool for viewing patient status at a glance. 
 
Develop a revised comfort and pressure care 
record. This combines information from the 
comfort round record, repositioning charts, daily 
skin check and pressure ulcer care plan.  
 
A new hydration record chart is being tested on 
Parry Ward. This will then be rolled out for use 
across the Trust. Further promotion on use of 
the fluid intake and output / fluid balance charts 
through awareness sessions with each ward and 
sisters meetings. 
 
Review Patient Assessment Record to consider 
recording whether a fluid balance chart and 
comfort round is required for each patient 
 
Comfort Round compliance is audited through 
the IHI General Ward Work stream (to include 
Day Surgery) 
 
Audit form to be designed to allow a full patient 
case note review (this will be undertaken across 
the Trust on a monthly basis) 

April 2013 
 
 
 
 
May 2013 
 
 
 
 
May 2013 
 
 
 
 
 
 
May 2013 
 
 
 
April 2013 
 
 
 
May 2013 

Mark Hawkins, Medial 
Records Manager 
Anne Plaskitt 
 
 
Anne Plaskitt 
 
 
 
 
Natasha Howard, 
Sister, Parry Ward 
Anne Plaskitt 
Nutrition and 
Hydration Steering 
Group  
 
Anne Plaskitt 
 
 
 
Anne Plaskitt 
 
 
 
Rob Eliot 
Bernie Marden, Chair 
of Medical Records 
User Group 

 Agree changes to policy at next 
Medical Records User Group / NHSLA 
documentation steering group.  
 
The results from completed audits will 
be reviewed at Quality Board. 

 

 

P
a

g
e
 4

2



 
 

Appendix C: Action Plan from the CQC unannounced inspection of the RUH (February 2013) 
 

Page 5 of 5 
Author: Rob Eliot, Lead for Quality Assurance 
Version 2 
Date: 15 March 2013 

 

 

Status 

Red 
Cause for concern. No progress towards completion. Needs 
evidence of action being taken 

Amber Delayed, with evidence of actions to get back on track 

Green Progressing to time, evidence of progress 

 

P
a
g
e
 4

3



P
a

g
e
 4

4

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k


	Agenda
	6 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	11 Royal United Hospital - Inspection Update
	RUH Action Plan 270313


